
Page 1 of 9 
 

STATE OF HAWAIʻI  
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION MEETING/WORKSHOP AGENDA 
91-5420 Kapolei Parkway, Kapolei, Oʻahu, Hawaiʻi, and  

Zoom: Meeting ID: 609 754 2925 PW:giU7Mf (case sensitive) 
Monday, July 17, 2023, at 9:30 a.m., to be continued, if necessary, on 

Tuesday, July 18, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. 
Livestream available at www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live 

 
Note: Commission Meeting Packets will be available at dhhl.hawaii.gov by Wednesday, July 15, 2023. 

 
I. ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
A. Roll Call 
B. Approval of Agenda 
C. Approval of Minutes:  

a. June 16, 2023 Budget Workshop 
b. June 26 & 27, 2023 Regular Meeting 

D. Public Testimony on Agendized Items - see information below 
 
Public testimony on any item relevant to this agenda may be taken at this time, or a testifier may 
wait to testify when the agenda item is called for discussion. Pursuant to section 92-3, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes, and section 10-2-11(c), Hawaii Administrative Rules, the Chair of the 
Commission has the authority to impose reasonable conditions to ensure an orderly and efficient 
meeting.  

 
II. ITEMS FOR DECISION MAKING 

 
A. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Homestead Services Division 
 
D-2 Approval of Consent to Mortgage (see exhibit) 
D-3 Ratification of Loan Approvals (see exhibit) 
D-4 Approval of Homestead Application Transfers / Cancellations (see exhibit) 
D-5 Approval to Certify Applications of Qualified Applicants for the Month of June 2023 

(see exhibit) 
D-6 Approval of Assignment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit) 
D-7 Approval of Amendment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit) 
D-8 Approval to Issue Non-Exclusive Licenses for Rooftop Photovoltaic Systems for Certain 

Lessees (see exhibit) 
D-9 Commission Designation of Successor – WAYNE W. KAUPIKO, Residential Lease 

No. 09314, Lot No. 1, Kaniohale, Hawaiʻi 
D-10 Approval of Subdivision Transfer of a Portion of Lease and Amendment – PAUL M. 

PURDY, Lease No. 2778, Lot No. 69, Kuhio Village, Hawaiʻi 
D-11 Commission Designation of Successor – COLETTE MACHADO, Residential Lease 

No. 9556, Lot No. 37, Hoʻolehua, Molokai 
D-12 Request for Relocation – RAYMOND K. ROWE, Lease No. 8987, Lot No. 56B, 

Keaukaha, Hawaiʻi 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live


Page 2 of 9 
 

 
B. REGULAR AGENDA 

 
Office of the Chairman 
 
C-1    Approval of Lease Award Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai Subdivision Phase II-Residential Vacant 

Lots-Anahola, Kauaʻi (see exhibit) 
 
Land Development Division 
 
E-1   Approval of Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI):  Villages of Leialiʻi, Village 1-

B Subdivision Project - Final Environmental Assessment; Wahikuli, District of Lahaina, 
Maui Island; TMK Nos. (2)4-5-021:007 (por.), 010 (por.), 014 (por.), 020, 021 (por.), 
(2) 4-5-036:109, 110, 112 (por.), and Portion of Honoapiʻilani Highway Right-of-Way 

 
Land Management Division 

 
F-1 Approval to Extension of Lease Term Expired or Scheduled to Expire for various 

General Leases, Kaei Hana I Industrial Subdivision, Waiakea, South Hilo, Hawaiʻi 
TMK Nos. (3) 2-2-060:052, 061, 062, 068, 070, 071, and 072  

F-2 Approval to Issue Right of Entry Permit to Koʻolau Foundation, Haiku, Heʻeia, Oʻahu, 
TMK: (1) 4-6-015:014 (por.) 

F-3 Approval to Issue Second Amendment to Right of Entry Permit No. 701, Hawaiian 
Telcom, Makuʻu, Island of Hawaiʻi, TMK Nos. (3) 1-5-119:051, (3) 1-5-118:048, (3) 1-
5-120:036, and (3) 1-5-121:046 

F-4 Approval to Issue License Easement for Kulana Lot Access Purposes to Clay & Jeannie 
Yoshida, Georg & Karleen Abalos, and Reid Yoshida, TMK: (4) 4-8-011:022 (por.) 

F-5 Approval to Issue of Right of Entry Permit to Akana Brother’s Construction LLC, 
Mapunapuna, Island of Oʻahu, TMK Nos.: (1) 1-1-064:033; and 021 

F-6 Approval to Issuance of a General Lease to Waiohuli Hawaiian Homesteaders 
Association, Inc., Waiohuli-Keokea, Maui, TMK Nos: (2) 2-2-028:181(por.), and (2) 2-
2-002:014 (por.) 

  
Planning Office 

 
G-1 Approval of the Re-use of the Existing Building (former military temporary housing) at 

91-1071 Yorktown Street, Kalaeloa, moku of ʻEwa, Ahupuaʻa of Honouliuli, island of 
Oʻahu TMK (1) 9-1-013:024 (por.) Designated “Industrial” as an Acceptable Use 
Pursuant to the DHHL General Plan Update 2022 
  

III. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 
 

A. REGULAR ITEMS 
 

Office of the Chairman 
 
C-2 For Information Only – Report and Recommendations from the Permitted Interaction 

Group, Appointed Pursuant to HRS § 92-2.5 and HAR § 10-2-16(b)(1), to Study and 
Recommend Strategies Related to Fairness in Lease Transfers  

C-3 For Information Only – Report and Recommendations from the Permitted Interaction 
Group, Appointed Pursuant to HRS § 92-2.5 and HAR §10-2-16(b)(1), to Study, 
Evaluate, and Recommend Strategies Related to Geothermal Exploration, Feasibility, 
Extraction, and/or Use on Hawaiian Home Lands 



Page 3 of 9 
 

C-4 For Information Only – Draft 2023 Annual Performance Report (APR) – Native 
Hawaiian Housing Block Grant 

 
Homestead Services Division 

 
D-1 HSD Status Reports 

 A.-Homestead Lease and Application Totals and Monthly Activity Reports 
 B.-Delinquency Reports 
 C.-DHHL Guarantees for FHA Construction Loans 

 
 Land Development Division 

 
E-2 For Information Only – Act 279 Implementation Encumbrance Report as of June 30, 2023 
E-3 For Information Only – Papakolea Projects Update 

 
Planning Office 
 

G-2 For Information Only – Water Policy Plan Implementation Report for FY ‘23 and Draft 
Water Policy Implementation Plan for FY ‘24 

G-3 For Information Only – Status Update on Plan Implementation in the Kona Moku, Island 
of Oʻahu 

 
IV. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND RECESS 

 
1. DHHL Community Meeting July 17, 2023- Papakolea, Oʻahu, Stevenson Middle School, 

1202 Prospect Street, Honolulu, Hawaii, 96822 
  



Page 4 of 9 

STATE OF HAWAIʻI 
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION MEETING/WORKSHOP AGENDA 
91-5420 Kapolei Parkway, Kapolei, Oʻahu, Hawaiʻi, and

Zoom: Meeting ID: 609 754 2925 PW:giU7Mf (case sensitive) 
Tuesday, July 18, 2023, at 9:30 a.m. 

Livestream available at www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live 

I. ORDER OF BUSINESS

A. Roll Call
B. Public Testimony on Agendized Items - see information below

Public testimony on any item relevant to this agenda may be taken at this time, or a testifier may 
wait to testify when the agenda item is called for discussion. Pursuant to section 92-3, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes, and section 10-2-11(c), Hawaii Administrative Rules, the Chair of the Commission 
has the authority to impose reasonable conditions to ensure an orderly and efficient meeting.  

II. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION

A. GENERAL AGENDA

Requests to Address the Commission 

J-1 Gil Campbell – Lease Issue 
J-2 Lydia Kamoku – Successorship Issues 
J-3 Leilehualani Kane – Waiahole Waikane Hawaiian Homestead Association 
J-4 Blossom Feiteira – Various Concerns 
J-5 Kaleo Cullen – Kahikinui 
J-6 Chantal Keliihoomalu - Kapolei Community Development Corporation (KCDC) 
J-7 Adrienne Kia – Waiohuli Lessee 

III. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ADJOURNMENT

A. Next HHC Meeting –August 21 & 22, 2023, Hilton Garden Inn Kuhio Room, 3-
5920 Kuhio Highway, Kapaʻa, Kauai, 96746

B. Next DHHL Community Meeting – August 21, 2023 – King Kaumualiʻi School.
C. Adjournment

________________________________ 
Kali Watson, Chairman 
Hawaiian Homes Commission 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 

Randy K. Awo, Maui  Zachary Z. Helm, Molokaʻi  
Patricia A. Teruya, Oʻahu   Makai Freitas, West Hawaiʻi 
Pauline N. Namuʻo, Oʻahu  Dennis L. Neves, Kauaʻi  
Michael L. Kaleikini, East Hawaiʻi Vacant, Oʻahu   

http://www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live


Page 5 of 9 

If you need an auxiliary aid/service or other accommodation due to a disability, contact Michael Lowe at 620-9512 or 
michael.l.lowe@hawaii.gov as soon as possible, preferably by July 12, 2023. If a response is received after then, we 
will try to obtain the auxiliary aid/service or accommodation, but we cannot guarantee that the request will be 
fulfilled. Upon request, this notice is available in alternate formats.  

Public Testimony on Agendized Items can be provided either as: (1) in person at the meeting location by filling out 
a form at the reception table, (2) written testimony mailed to Commission Testimony, P.O. Box 1879, Honolulu, HI, 
96815, or emailed to DHHL.icro@hawaii.gov by July 12, 2023, or (3) live, oral testimony online by joining the 
Zoom meeting and relabeling your profile to include the agenda item you wish to testify on.  Please keep your 
computer muted and your camera off until you are called. You will need a computer with internet access, a video 
camera, and a microphone to participate. Testimony may be limited to three (3) minutes per person.  

Disruption of Interactive Technology – If audiovisual communication cannot be maintained by all participating 
Commissioners and a quorum is lost, the meeting will automatically be recessed for 30 minutes. During that time, an 
attempt to restore audiovisual communication will be made. If such an attempt to restore is unsuccessful within 30 
minutes, all Commissioners, members of the public, staff, and other interested individuals shall log on again to the 
Zoom link on this Notice, whereby audio communication will be established for all participants and the meeting will 
continue. If reconvening the meeting is not possible because audio and visual communication cannot be re-
established, the meeting will be terminated. 



Page 6 of 9 

ITEM C-1 
APPROVAL OF LEASE AWARD PIʻILANI MAI KE KAI SUBDIVISION PHASE II-RESIDENTIAL 

VACANT LOTS-ANAHOLA, KAUAʻI 

NAME APPL DATE      LOT NO          TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 
WENDELL L KEAWEMAHI   06/06/1986 44 (4) 4-8-022-133 13021 
BENNY W LAGMAY 4/22/1986 16 (4) 4-8-022-105 13022 
MADONNA L KALEIOHI 10/29/1990 29 (4) 4-8-022-116 13023 
JONA MARIE K.P. AHUNA     08/12/1988 24 (4) 4-8-022-113 13024 
ELIZABETH K. PREM 10/14/1988 47 (4) 4-8-022-136 13025 
EMERY K KAUANUI  05/21/1976 41 (4) 4-8-022-130 13026 
MICHAEL TODD MARTIN    03/17/1986 23 (4) 4-8-022-112 13027 

         ITEM D-2 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT TO MORTGAGE 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 
BEAUFORD, Shawnise K.  11585 Kanehili, Oahu 
CULLEN, Wayne K. 9704 Lualualei, Oahu 
HOOPII, Carrie K. 6296 Keaukaha, Hawaii 
HULU, Samuel K., Jr. 5881 Kalamaula, Molokai 
ISHIKAWA, Melvin S.  8552 Princess Kahanu Estates, Oahu 
KAOPUA, Sherman K. 11180 Panaewa, Hawaii 
KYLE, Abraham, III 6709 Waianae, Oahu 
KYLE, Corinna 6709 Waianae, Oahu 
LEE, Herbert A. M.  6357 Kawaihae, Hawaii 
LEONG, Calvin 9850 Maluohai, Oahu 
LEONG, Keone 12666 Kanehili, Oahu 
MCFEELEY, Lillian K. 2926 Nanakuli, Oahu 
MEDEIROS, Reid E. K. K. 12426 Kauluokahai, Oahu 
MEDINA, Katherine L. M.  12983 Kakaina, Oahu 
PANGKEE, Nohea M. 5758 Hoolehua, Molokai 
SEGUANCIA, Glenn Q., Jr.  8578 Nanakuli, Oahu 
WAHINEKAPU, Charmaine I. 9418 Kaniohale, Hawaii 
WAKINEKONA, Kahealani 6195 Puukapu, Hawaii 
YIM, Edith W.  2168 Kewalo, Oahu 

ITEM D-3 EXHIBIT 
RATIFICATION OF LOAN APPROVALS 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 
GOMES, Andrew M. K. 3880 Kalamaula, Molokai 
GOMES, Corina N. K. 3880 Kalamaula, Molokai 
KEAHI, Precious 3880 Kalamaula, Molokai 
WOODWARD, James W. M. K. 13013 Waianae, Oahu 



Page 7 of 9 

ITEM D-4 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL OF HOMESTEAD APPLICATION TRANSFERS / CANCELLATIONS 

APPLICANT AREA 
AHKOI, William M., Jr. Hawaii IW Pas to Oahu IW Agr 
AH MOOK SANG, Henry P. Molokai IW Agr 
AKANA, Henry Jr. Maui IW Agr 
AKANA, Henry Jr. Maui IW Res 
AKANA, Legend K. Oahu IW Res 
AKINA, Gerald Sr. Hawaii IW Res 
CHAI-SIAFUAFU, Germaine L. Oahu IW Res 
CRAWFORD, Abraham E. Oahu IW Res 
DAMAS, Mark S. Oahu IW Agr to Hawaii IW Agr 
DE SILVA, Yukie-Lynn Kauai IW Agr 
DE SILVA, Yukie-Lynn Kauai IW Res 
DUARTE, Mary K. Oahu IW Res 
FERNANDES, Alethea H. Kauai IW Agr 
FERNANDES, Alethea H. Kauai IW Res 
GARCIA, Earlyne K. Maui IW Agr 
HAMMOND, Barbara J. Kauai IW Agr 
HANSON, Henrietta U. Hawaii IW Agr 
HARDWICK, Davelynn K.L. Molokai IW Res 
HEEN, Ernest Jr. Waimanalo Area / Oahu IW Res 
HOLOKAHI, Francis N., Jr. Kauai IW Agr 
JOHN, Michael M., Jr. Hawaii IW Agr 
KAIO, Dennis J. Oahu IW Agr 
KAIO, Dennis J. Oahu IW Res 
KALAMA, Elmonte P. Molokai IW Res 
KALAULI, Richardson K. Waimanalo Area / Oahu IW Res 
KALAULI, Richardson K. Hawaii IW Agr 
KALEI, Walter Waimanalo Area / Oahu IW Res 
KALILIKANE, Elenora Maui IW Agr 
KANAEHOLO, Julian K., Jr. Hawaii IW Agr 
KANAEHOLO, Julian K., Jr. Hawaii IW Res 
KANAHELE, Blossom L. Kauai IW Agr 
KANAHELE, Blossom L. Kauai IW Res 
KANAHELE, Miriam Ella Kauai IW Agr 
KANOA, Elizabeth Waimanalo Area / Oahu IW Res 
KAOHELAULII, Loka J. Kauai IW Agr 
KAUPU, Sean Thomas K. Oahu IW Res 
KAWELO, David Oahu IW Res 
KEALOHA, Peter S., Jr. Hawaii IW Agr 
KEALOHA, Peter S., Jr. Hawaii IW Res 
KEALOHA, Ronald K. Kauai IW Agr 
MATTHEWS, Clara K. Maui IW Res to Oahu IW Res 
NAONE, Solomon P., Sr. Oahu IW Agr to Hawaii IW Agr 
NAONE, Solomon P., Sr. Oahu IW Res to Hawaii IW Res 
PAVAO, Donovan R.K. Maui IW Res to Hawaii IW Res 
TEHOTU, Shalane Oahu IW Res 



Page 8 of 9 

VENTURA, Kiki L.L. Hawaii IW Res 
WILLIAMS, Frances A. Maui IW Res to Oahu IW Res 

* IW = Islandwide

ITEM D-5 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL TO CERTIFY APPLICATIONS OF QUALIFIED APPLICANTS FOR THE MONTH OF 

February 2023 

APPLICANT AREA 
APUNA, Alia N.K. Kauai IW Pas 
APUNA, Alia N.K. Kauai IW Res 
BECKER, Frances M. Hawaii IW Agr 
BECKER, Frances M. Kauai IW Res 
BURROWS, Moses Hoolehua Area / Molokai IW Pas 
IRVINE- PULE, Hokulani Oahu IW Res 
KAHIHIKOLO-THOMPSON, Hoopono L.K. Hawaii IW Pas 
KAHIHIKOLO-THOMPSON, Hoopono L.K. Hawaii IW Res 
KAHIKINA, Bernadine M. Oahu IW Agr 
KAHIKINA, Bernadine M. Oahu IW Res 
KALEIOPU, Miranda K. Oahu IW Res 
KAOLULO, Harmony K. Oahu IW Agr 
KAOLULO, Harmony K. Oahu IW Res 
KAPU, Paul K. Maui IW Agr 
KAPU, Paul K. Maui IW Res 
KAPU, Shaldon K.L. Maui IW Agr 
KAPU, Shaldon K.L. Maui IW Res 
KEKOA, Brandon K. Oahu IW Agr 
KEKOA, Brandon K. Oahu IW Res 
KIESEL, Shawn K. Maui IW Agr 
KIESEL, Shawn K. Maui IW Res 
KUNEWA, Jason K. Hawaii IW Agr 
KUNEWA, Jason K. Hawaii IW Res 
LANDERS, Cheryl Ann N.K. Maui IW Agr 
LANDERS, Cheryl Ann N.K. Maui IW Res 
LYMAN, Ekekela Kuuleialoha K.K. Hawaii IW Agr 
LYMAN, Ekekela Kuuleialoha K.K. Hawaii IW Res 
MAKANEOLE, Kale K. Hawaii IW Pas 
MAKANEOLE, Kale K. Hawaii IW Res 
PAHUKOA, Naomi N.K. Maui IW Agr 
PAHUKOA, Naomi N.K. Maui IW Res 
PURDY, William M.K. Molokai IW Agr 
PURDY, William M.K. Molokai IW Res 
STANLEY, Alallen K.F. Oahu IW Agr 
STANLEY, Alallen K.F. Oahu IW Res 
TAYAG, Alicia A. Oahu IW Agr 



Page 9 of 9 
 

TAYAG, Alicia A. Oahu IW Res 
VEGAS, Edward C.K. Maui IW Pas 
VEGAS, Edward C.K. Maui IW Res 
WAIPA, Harvey Hawaii IW Agr 
  
                                    * IW = Islandwide 
  

ITEM D-6 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL OF ASSIGNMENT OF LEASEHOLD INTEREST 

 
LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

OBREY, Travis Mark P.  7187 Kawaihae, Hawaii 
LOANDO, Roy A. 13002 Discovery Harbour, Hawaii 

 
ITEM D-7 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT OF LEASEHOLD INTEREST 
 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 
KAAI, Benjamin 1256 Keaukaha, Hawaii 

 
ITEM D-8 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL TO ISSUE A NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE FOR ROOFTOP PHOTOVOLTAIC 
SYSTEMS FOR CERTAIN LESSEES 

 
LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

BECK, Paulette L. 12762 Maluohai, Oahu 
CAZIMERO, Lionel A. 8197 Waimanalo, Oahu 
JOSUE, Pualani N. 2726 Waimanalo, Oahu 
KALILIMOKU, Calvin C. E. 3403 Waimanalo, Oahu 
KALILIMOKU, Florencia P. 3403 Waimanalo, Oahu 
KIM-LUNING, Adam K. 10294 Waiohuli, Maui 
MANINI, Jack K. 7052 Puupulehu, Hawaii 
NAHOOIKAIKA, Roxanne N. 8165 Paukukalo, Maui 
NUUANU, Abraham K. 8255 Nanakuli, Oahu 
POKIPALA, Corinne K. S. L. 608 Kewalo, Oahu 
SMITH, Davelyn K. 11681 Kanehili, Oahu 

 
 
 



HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

JUL V 17 & 18, 2023 

C-ITEMS

OFFICE OF THE CHAIRMAN 



  ITEM C-1 

STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

July 17, 2023 

 

TO:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 
THROUGH:   Paula Aila, Acting Administrator,  

Contact & Awards Division  
 
FROM:  Michelle Hitzeman, HALE Manager /Project Lead 
  Moana Freitas, Case Management Specialist 
  Contact & Awards Division 
 
SUBJECT:   Approval of Lease Award  
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 

Approve the awards of Department of Hawaiian Home Lands Residence Lot Leases to the 
applicants listed below for ninety-nine (99) years, subject to the purchase of the existing 
improvements on the lot by way of a loan or cash. 

 

DISCUSSION 

Piʻilani Mai Ke Kai Subdivision Phase II – Residential Vacant Lots – Anahola, Kauai  

NAME                                        APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY        LEASE NO 

WENDELL L KEAWEMAHI   06/06/1986  44      (4) 4-8-022-133       13021  

BENNY W LAGMAY       04/22/1986 16      (4) 4-8-022-105       13022  

MADONNA L KALEIOHI       10/29/1990 29      (4) 4-8-022-116       13023 

JONA MARIE K.P. AHUNA     08/12/1988 24             (4) 4-8-022-113       13024 

ELIZABETH K. PREM       10/14/1988 47             (4) 4-8-022-136       13025 

EMERY K KAUANUI       05/21/1976 41             (4) 4-8-022-130       13026 

MICHAEL TODD MARTIN      03/17/1986 23             (4) 4-8-022-112       13027 

 

 

 

 



STATE OF HAWAI`I 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

JULY 17 & 18, 2023 

 

TO:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

FROM: Administrative Rules Officer, Hokulei Lindsey 

SUBJECT: Item C-2 – For Information Only – Report and Recommendations 
from the Permitted Interaction Group, Appointed Pursuant to HRS  

 § 92-2.5 and HAR § 10-2-16(b)(1), to Study and Recommend 
Strategies Related to Fairness in Lease Transfers. 

 
This submittal will be sent under separate cover. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         ITEM NO. C-2 



1 ITEM C-3

STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

July 1, 2023 

TO: Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission (“HHC”). 

FROM: Russell K. Kaupu; Property Development Agent, Office of the Chairman, 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (“DHHL”). 

SUBJECT: Report and Recommendations from the Geothermal Permitted Interaction 
Group. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 

None.  This report is for information only.  It is recommended, however, that the 
Geothermal PIG remain active to continue to work with the consultant engaged by DHHL to 
flesh out this opportunity. 

DISCUSSION: 

On March 20, 2023, Interim HHC Chairman Ikaika Anderson established a Permitted 
Interaction Group pursuant to HRS Section 92-2.5 and HAR Section 10-2-16(b)(1) to “Study, 
Evaluate, and Recommend Strategies Related to Geothermal Exploration, Feasibility, Extraction, 
and or Use on Hawaiian Home Lands” (informally referred to as the “Geothermal PIG” or the 
“PIG”).  The appointed members of the Geothermal PIG were Oahu Commissioner Russell 
Kaupu (Chair) and Hawaii Commissioners Michael Kaleikini and Makai Freitas.  DHHL staff that 
have participated in meetings of the Geothermal PIG include Katie Ducatt, Brian Furuto, Kahana 
Albinio, Andrew Choy and Hokulei Lindsey.  It is noted that Russell Kaupu (Chair) submitted a 
resignation from his HHC office this past June so he could accept a staff position at the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (as noted above).  As such, it is incumbent upon the HHC 
Chairman to appoint a replacement Commissioner to the PIG, to designate a new Chair for the 
PIG, and to direct Russell Kaupu to remain active with the PIG as a DHHL staff member.  

The Committee has met a total of four times: on April 13, 2023, May 1, 2023, May 18, 
2023, and July 6, 2023.  Guests who have made presentations to the Geothermal PIG or 
otherwise participated in discussions include: 

• Don Thomas (Geothermal Researcher/Advocate and Professor, UH-Hilo Center for the
Study of Active Volcanoes);



2 

•

•

•

•

Nicole Lautze (Geothermal Researcher/Advocate and Professor, Director, Hawai`i
Groundwater & Geothermal Resources Center; Professor, Hawai`i Institute of
Geophysics & Planetology;

Robbie Cabral (Principal, WAIKA CONSULTING LLC);

Malama Solomon (Principal, WAIKA CONSULTING LLC); and

Mililani Trask (Principal, WAIKA CONSULTING LLC).

Professors Thomas and Lautze summarized the findings of a study they conducted for the 
Hawaii Groundwater and Geothermal Resources Center (HGGRC).  Principals Cabral, Solomon 
and Trask presented information on the geothermal development work they have done in New 
Zealand and would like to do in Hawaii via their WAIKA CONSULTING LLC entity.  The 
Geothermal PIG members also viewed a Renew & Rebuild Hawaii presentation by Nona Taute, 
PhD, University of Auckland Engineering, regarding geothermal development in Aotearoa, NZ 
and the Maori perspective on same. 

Early on, the Geothermal PIG agreed upon the following four points/questions to focus 
discussions and, ultimately, to be addressed in this report: 

1.

2.

3.

4.

What is the state of the technology and industry for geothermal power generation?

Are DHHL lands suitable sites for geothermal power generation (any early signs and
what is the process for confirming)?

What should DHHL’s role be in developing this resource (just make land available, or
also capital and political support)?

What are some alternative economic models and potential returns on investment?

It was later determined that point #4 is premature – better left to be worked on by the PIG 
going forward.  It was also decided that the PIG should assist Kahana Albinio with getting the 
consultant contract for the legislatively funded field survey for geothermal exploration in order 
and executed (which was done – mahalo Commissioner Kaleikini).  Without going into technical 
detail, which is beyond the scope of this report and will ultimately require the assistance of 
retained consultants to understand, the Geothermal PIG reports its findings on points 1 – 3 
above as follows: 

State of Technology and Industry.  The processes by which: (a) preliminary studies are 
conducted to provide hints (i.e., higher probabilities) of sites where sufficient geothermal 
resource are present; (b) exploration wells are drilled to confirm site feasibility; and (c) 
electricity is ultimately generated using a binary, closed loop system are all “mature” 
technologies that are proven to be reliable.  Such technology has successfully been employed in 
Hawaii at Puna Geothermal Venture since the early 1990s.  There is a considerable amount of 
engineering that goes into a venture such as geothermal power production, but it is not the 

ITEM C-3



3 

proverbial “rocket science”.  As is true with select other ventures, success is primarily 
dependent upon location, location, location. 

Suitability of DHHL Lands for Geothermal.  While studies conducted by the Hawaii 
Groundwater and Geothermal Resources Center (HGGRC) show active geothermal activity (i.e., 
heat from the earth) at a number of DHHL properties, the sites with the highest probability of 
viable electricity generation are in the Humuula (Mauna Kea) and Upper Kawaihae (Kohala 
Mountain) areas, with Humuula being most roadway accessible.  Projects built in Aotearoa, NZ 
have shown that careful, thoughtful geothermal development can be done in a way that is 
respectful of native people and culture.  Per Mililani Trask, what makes DHHL lands suitable and 
acceptable for geothermal development – though she actively opposed such development on 
Hawaii island in the 70s and 80s – is that native people who own the resource are at the table 
and will receive a fair share of the economic return (Note: the Geothermal PIG was made aware 
of a March 17, 2014 Hawaii Attorney General’s Opinion that confirms that DHHL is entitled to 
100% of royalties from geothermal projects on DHHL lands). 

DHHL’s Role in Developing Geothermal.  It was the consensus of the PIG that DHHL should not 
try to develop its geothermal resources on its own, but should, instead, work with a private 
party with both industry knowledge/experience and the ability to finance the venture.  Two 
alternative models to venture with a private party were discussed: (1) Private Public 
Partnership (PPP), and (2) straight ground lease with a royalty-based concession.  In either case, 
DHHL’s contribution to the venture should primarily be limited to making its land available, 
lending political support for the project (including identifying and pursuing government funding 
- both grants and loans), and providing cultural competency, native community relations, and 
beneficiary consultation. 

ITEM C-3























































































































































HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

JULY 17 & 18, 2023 

D-ITEMS

HOMESTEAD SERVICES DIVISION 

























































































HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

JUL V 17 & 18, 2023 

E- ITEMS

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 



To: 

From: 

Subject: 

STATE OF HAWAI'I 
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

July 17-18, 2023 

Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

Stewart Matsunaga, Acting Administrator, Land Development Di 
Neil Nugent, Engineer V, Design and Construction Branch C,M 

Approval of a Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) determination based on 
the Final Environmental Assessment (EA) for the Villages of Leiali 'i, Village 1-B 
Subdivision Project; Wahikuli, District of Lahaina, Maui Island; TMK Nos. (2)4-
5-021:007 (por.), 0lO(por.), 014(por.), 020, 021(por.), (2)4-5-036: 109, 110,
112(por.), and Honoapi'ilani Highway Right-of-Way(por.)

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ ACTION: 

That the Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) approve a Finding of No Significant Impact 
(FONSI) determination based on the Final Environmental Assessment (EA) for the Villages of 
Leiali 'i, Village 1-B Subdivision Project. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL) proposes to construct 
the Villages of Leiali 'i, Village 1-B subdivision and related improvements in Lahaina, Maui, 
Hawai'i. The proposed Village 1-B (Village 1-B) subdivision is anticipated to be built on land 
identified by Tax Map Key (TMK) (2)4-5-021:020, an approximately 51-acre area of land owned 
by the DHHL located north of Leiali 'i Parkway and the existing DHHL Villages of Leiali 'i, Village 
1-A (Village 1-A) subdivision. See Exhibit 1. Both Village 1-A and Village 1-B were acquired by
DHHL from the Housing Finance and Development Corporation (HFDC) (predecessor to the
current Hawai 'i Housing Finance and Development Corporation (HHFDC)) in the early 2000' s. It
is noted that HHFDC still owns the lands mauka of Village 1-A and Village 1-B, which has been
planned for a separate master planned community, also referred to as the Villages of Leiali 'i.

As a matter of information, HHFDC has offered approximately 400 acres of land within the 
HHFDC owned portion of the Villages of Leiali 'i. While the HHFDC offer is gratis, DHHL staff 
is currently reviewing the conditions of acquisition, which may have long term cost impacts to the 
Trust. HHFDC has also provided DHHL with $10,000,000 for water improvements in Honokowai 
which will assist in servicing DHHL' s Villages of Leiali 'i 1-B parcel. 

The State Legislature has also appropriated $9,000,000 for the construction of highway and 
roadway improvements within State-owned Honoapi 'ilani Highway and County of Maui-owned 
Leiali 'i Parkway, respectively. 

The Hawaiian Homes Commission in its Act 279 Strategic Plan, submitted to the State Legislature 
in 2022, approved allocating $15,000,000 for Villages of Leiali'i offsite Water in 

1 ITEM NO. E-1



Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 and $68,000,000 for Villages of Leiali‘i onsite subdivision improvements 
$68,000,000 in FY 2024. 

The Anticipated Finding of No Significant Impacts (AFONSI) and Draft EA prepared for the 
project was published in the December 23, 2022 edition of The Environmental Notice.  
Comments from the Draft EA publication have been addressed and are contained within the 
Final EA. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

Village 1-B, as currently proposed, consists of a mix of single-family homes and multi-family 
units. Access to the subdivision will be provided from Leialiʻi Parkway. The new housing units 
will be made available to DHHL native Hawaiian beneficiaries currently on the waitlist for a 
residential lease on Maui. The proposed project will be developed in two (2) increments. Increment 
1 will consist of 86 single-family units. Increment 2 will consist of single-family lots, multi-family 
units, or a combination of both. At this time, the final unit count and product mix for Increment 2 
has not been determined. It is anticipated that the final unit count and product mix will be 
developed following consultation with DHHL beneficiaries on their preferences. However, it is 
noted that Increment 2 will not exceed 164 units, for a total of 250 lots or units for the entire 
project. See Exhibit B. Parking for single-family homes will be provided in attached garages, 
while parking for any multi-family units to be developed will be in paved parking areas. 

In order to develop the proposed subdivision, the following offsite improvements are required, and 
will also be developed as part of the proposed action:  

• Development of two (2) new offsite retention basins mauka of Village 1-B, on lands owned
by HHFDC.

• Adjustment of the outlet drainage pipes in the existing retention basin mauka of Village 1-
A, on lands owned by HHFDC, and enlargement of the basin.

• Grading and development of drainage interceptor ditches mauka of Village 1-B, on
lands owned by HHFDC.

• Roadway improvements to Leialiʻi Parkway and Honoapiʻilani Highway.
• Roadway repairs to existing portions of Leiali‘i Parkway.

The drainage improvements discussed above will be located on TMK (2)4-5-021:021, 
owned by HHFDC. Refer to Exhibit A. The proposed improvements along Leialiʻi Parkway 
include widening of Leialiʻi Parkway from two (2) lanes to four (4) lanes, restriping, removal and 
replacement of the existing trees in the median and north shoulder above the Lahaina Civic Center, 
relocation of the traffic signals at the intersection with Honoapiʻilani Highway, which may involve 
the relocation of existing traffic signals within Wahikuli Wayside Park (TMK (2)4-5-
021:007(por.)), and any needed repairs and improvements as required for future licensure of the 
roadway to the County of Maui. Restriping along Honoapiʻilani Highway is also being proposed. 
In addition, due to the widening of Leialiʻi Parkway, reconfiguration of the access driveway to the 
Lahaina Post Office will also be required. It is noted that Leialiʻi Parkway is encompassed by four 
(4) TMKs, identified as (2)4-5-036:109 and 110, owned by the DHHL, and (2)4-5-036:112 and
(2)4-5-021:010, which are owned by the State. Honoapiʻilani Highway is a State of Hawaiʻi,
Department of Transportation (HDOT) owned highway. Refer to Exhibit B.

2 ITEM NO. E-1



Potable water source for Villages of Leiali‘i 1-B will be addressed in the Draft EA for the 
Honokowai Water System Masterplan.  Land Development Division anticipates publishing the 
DEA in later calendar 2023.  As a matter of information, DHHL has 200,000 gallons per day of 
available source capacity from the County of Maui Department of Water Supply (DWS) in 
exchange for License Easements for access and water improvements situated on Hawaiian home 
lands.  DHHL is required to construct water improvements to the satisfaction of the DWS. 

Offsite potable water storage needed for Villages of Leiali‘i 1-B Increment 1 (86 lots below 130 
foot elevation) is currently adequate; construction of subdivision improvements may proceed 
following subdivision approval, construction plan approval and procurement of contractor and/or 
developer.  However, offsite potable water storage for Villages of Leiali‘i 1-B Increment 2 ( 86 
lots to 164 multi-family units above 130 food elevation) requires further water pressure testing and 
operations analysis by the County of Maui Department of Water Supply.  Offsite water 
improvements are addressed not within the subject FEA, but within the HHFDC Villages of 
Leiali‘i Masterplan (1990) and Re-Masterplan (2012). 

FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT SUMMARY:  

The project will involve the use of state lands and funds, which triggers Chapter 343, 
Hawaiʻi Revised Statutes (HRS) environmental review requirements. As such, a Final EA has been 
prepared to assess the technical characteristics and potential environmental impacts of the 
proposed project, as well as advance findings and mitigation measures relative to the project. 

The following sections highlight key environmental impact considerations and mitigation 
measures from the Final EA analysis: 

• Surrounding Land Uses
The subject property is located within the Urban Growth Boundary of the Maui

Island Plan and is in close proximity to existing residential, commercial, and public/quasi-
public land uses. The project is compatible with adjacent uses and is not anticipated to have
a significant adverse impact on surrounding land uses.

• Climate
Replacement of vegetative surfaces with hardscapes such as roadways and housing

units may cause a slight increase in ambient air temperatures. To address what is referred
to as “heat island” effect, landscape design, and a planting plan will be employed to provide
shading. As such, the proposed project is not anticipated to have a significant adverse effect
on climate.

• Topography and Soil Characteristics
According to the U.S. Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation Service (1972),

soils underlying the project site belong to the Waiakoa-Keahua Molokai association. The
Waiakoa-Keahua-Molokai association is characterized by nearly level to moderately steep,
well drained soils located on uplands, consisting mostly of weathered material from basic

3 ITEM NO. E-1



igneous rock, while the upper profile is influenced by volcanic ash. The project site will be 
graded to collect runoff in retention basins and drainage systems within the project site. 
Efforts will be made to maintain a balance between excavation and embankment (cut and 
fill) quantities to reduce the import and/or export of earthwork materials. In addition, the 
grading of the onsite and offsite work will be phased with the site development. The initial 
phase of work will include grading related to the offsite detention basins mauka of the 
subdivision area. Material from excavation of the detention basins will be used as fill 
material for grading work within Increment 1. Increment 2 construction will occur 
subsequent to the completion of Increment 1.  
 

• Agricultural Lands 
 The project area was previously in commercial agricultural cultivation for sugar 
cane from around the late 19th Century to mid-20th Century. Although the project area has 
historically been utilized for agricultural cultivation, it has not been actively cultivated for 
many years. The project area is adjacent to existing urban development and has been 
identified for future urban use by the Maui Island Plan and West Maui Community Plan. 
On the island of Maui, approximately 70,714 acres of the total land area of the island are 
within the ALISH “Prime” Designation, this represents approximately 15 percent of the 
island. As such, the use of 51 acres, or 0.07 percent of the “Prime” designated agricultural 
land on Maui is not considered a substantial adverse impact in the context of the overall 
Prime designated lands on Maui. Significant adverse impacts to agricultural productivity 
in the region are not anticipated as a result of the proposed action. 
 

• Streams and Wetlands 
 According to the United States Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife 
Service, National Wetland Inventory Map, there is an unnamed gulch that runs through 
portions of the proposed retention basins. A Waters of the U.S. Assessment was prepared 
for the gulch, which reported that the gulch is characterized as an ephemeral intermittent 
stream that only runs briefly 2 to 3 times a year following major rainfall events. Most of 
the land where the channel runs was formerly part of a large sugar cane plantation, but is 
now fallow. The assessment found the gulch to be an ephemeral aquatic resource that has 
no nexus with the Pacific Ocean Traditional Navigable Water. Development of the project 
and the related offsite improvements will not impact the historical alignment of the 
unnamed gulch. As such, it is not anticipated that the proposed improvements would 
adversely impact this feature. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) has confirmed 
that a Department of the Army permit is not required for this project. 
 

• Flood and Tsunami Hazards 
 The Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for this area of the island designates the 
Village 1-B subdivision as being within Zone X (unshaded) and such, is not subject to the 
Flood Hazard District Ordinance, Chapter 19.62 of the Maui County Code. Lands along 
Honoapi‘ilani Highway are designated as Flood Zone VE and Flood Zone A. Zone X 
(unshaded) indicates an area of minimal flooding and has no restrictions placed on 
development. Flood Zone VE represents an area subject to inundation by the 1-percent-
annual-chance flood event with additional hazards due to storm-induced velocity wave 
action while Flood Zone A designates areas subject to inundation by the 1-percent-annual-

4 ITEM NO. E-1



chance flood event where no Base Flood elevation has been determined. The proposed 
dwelling units will be located in Flood Zone X.  
 
 A majority of the Village 1-B subdivision is located in the Safe Zone in regards to 
a tsunami threat. A small portion of the site along the makai boundary is located within the 
Extreme Tsunami Evacuation Zone and portions of the roadway and drainage 
improvements are located within the Tsunami Evacuation Zone. Though a portion of the 
Village 1-B subdivision is located within the Extreme Tsunami Evacuation Zone, no homes 
are proposed in this portion of the site. Work within Flood Zone VE and Flood Zone A, as 
well as the Tsunami Evacuation Zone and Extreme Tsunami Evacuation Zone, will be 
limited to non-habitable, offsite roadway and drainage improvements. No adverse impacts 
related to the flood and tsunami hazard zones are anticipated during the implementation of 
the project. 
 

• Sea Level Rise 
 A 3.2-foot rise in sea level is projected for the Hawaiian Islands by the mid to latter 
half of the 21st Century based on the findings of the Hawaii Sea Level Rise Vulnerability 
and Adoption Report that was prepared in 2017 by the Hawaii Climate Change Mitigation 
and Adoption Commission. The sea level rise mapping tool developed as part of this report 
utilizes three (3) different models to predict how climate change will affect coastal 
lands throughout Hawai‘i. The Village 1-B subdivision is located outside of the 3.2-foot 
sea level rise exposure area. Portions of the offsite improvements are located within the 
3.2-foot sea level rise exposure area, however, these improvements are minimal in scope 
and nonhabitable in nature. 
 

• Flora and Fauna 
 The Biological Resources Survey Report prepared for the project summarized that 
the vegetation within the area of the project primarily consists of non-native species that 
are of no special interest or concern. No federally Endangered or Threatened plant species 
were found in the project area, nor were any found that are candidates for such status. No 
special plant habitats were found here.  The survey found that the area is dominated by two 
(2) species that were abundant: buffelgrass (Cenchrus ciliaris) and koa haole (Leucaena 
leucocepahla), which together made up more than 95 percent of the total biomass. Two (2) 
indigenous native species were found: the koali kuahulu and the ʻuhaloa. Both of these 
native species are common and not of conservation concern. Although no rare, threatened 
or endangered species were seen during the survey, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and 
the State of Hawaiʻi Department of Land and Natural Resources, Department of Forestry 
and Wildlife was consulted and the project will implement the following mitigation 
meaures: 

 
o While not seen during the survey, the biological resources survey report, 

recommended mitigation measures to protect endangered or threatened native 
species that may occur in the project area including the nēnē goose (Branta 
sandvicensis), the ʻōpeʻapeʻa or Hawaiian hoary bat, and native seabirds including 
the ʻuaʻu or Hawaiian darkrumped petrel (Pterodroma sandwichensis) and the ʻaʻo 
or Newell’s shearwater (Puffinus newelli).  

 

5 ITEM NO. E-1



o The endemic and endangered nēnē goose was not seen in the project area. It is 
known to frequent the margins of reservoirs and ditches where they feed and rest. 
There is none of this habitat in or around the project area. However, should they 
show up, they will not be approached, fed or disturbed until they leave on their own 
accord. If nests are found, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) will be 
contacted for guidance. Should nēnē be observed during the breeding season from 
September through April, the area will be surveyed for the presence of nests. The 
ʻōpeʻapeʻa was not detected during the survey, however, USFWS will be consulted 
on how to proceed with project activities so that these bats will not be adversely 
affected. 

 
o Removing plants less than one (1) meter in height or during the dry time of the year 

will be avoided, as practicable, and any removed plants will be checked thoroughly 
for the presence of Blackburn’s sphinx moth (Manduca blackburni ) eggs and 
larvae 
 

o The DOFAW noted the potential of attracting vulnerable birds to areas that may 
host nonnative predators such as cats, rodents, and mongooses. To minimize the 
risk to vulnerable seabirds, project contractors will be instructed to minimize 
predator presence and remove cats, place bait stations for rodents and mongoose, 
and provide covered trash receptacles, as feasible. In addition, the DHHL will 
advise the Villages of Leiali‘i Homestead Association that pet cats should be kept 
indoors. 

 
o Thorough cleaning of equipment, materials and personnel will be employed to 

mitigate potential introduction of invasive species.  
 

o The USFWS noted that the threatened green sea turtle (Chelonia mydas) may be 
present in or near the project area. Other mitigation measures such as shielded 
lighting and avoiding nighttime work during sea turtle nesting and hatching season 
from mid-April through September will be implemented as applicable. Should sea 
turtles be observed during construction, all mechanical or construction work 
activity will cease within 100 feet until the turtle voluntarily leaves the area. 
 
 

o Should the State endangered Hawaiian Monk Seal be observed within 100 meters 
of the project area, all nearby construction operations will cease until the seal has 
departed on its own accord. 
 

o The DOFAW noted the potential of attracting vulnerable birds to areas that may 
host nonnative predators such as cats, rodents, and mongooses. To minimize the 
risk to vulnerable seabirds, project contractors will be instructed to minimize 
predator presence and remove cats, place bait stations for rodents and mongoose, 
and provide covered trash receptacles, as feasible. In addition, the DHHL will 
advise the Villages of Leiali‘i Homestead Association that pet cats should be kept 
indoors. 

  

6 ITEM NO. E-1



• Air Quality, Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Noise 
 

 Emissions and noise from construction equipment and other vehicles involved in 
construction activities may temporarily affect the ambient air quality and noise within the 
immediate vicinity. These effects, however, can be mitigated by proper maintenance of 
construction equipment and vehicles. Equipment mufflers or other noise attenuating 
equipment may also be utilized. A program of BMPs will be implemented during 
construction to mitigate potential for dust related impacts, including but not limited to, 
utilizing dust barriers, water wagons and/or sprinklers to control dust, and watering graded 
areas upon the completion of daily construction activities. The proposed action will involve 
short-term consumption of fuel for construction equipment, vehicles, and machinery during 
the construction period. This usage is not anticipated to be substantial or excessive within 
the context of the action’s benefits over the lifetime of the project.  
 
 After the project is completed, use of the proposed facilities may result in increased 
motor vehicle traffic to the project area. The project is anticipated to generate 139 (179) 
new vehicle trips during the morning (evening) peak hours of traffic, respectively. 
Statewide, vehicle-related fuel consumption for commercial, industrial, and residential 
sectors is a less significant contributor to total GHG emissions than emissions attributable 
to electricity consumption (Hawaii Department of Health, 2021), and this contribution is 
anticipated to continue to decrease due to ongoing reduction in vehicle emission standards 
as well as increased utilization of hybrid and electric vehicles. 
 

• Hazardous Materials 
 
 Due to the previous agricultural activity in the area, a Phase 2 Environmental Site 
Assessment (ESA) was conducted involving multi-increment (Ml) soil sampling from a 
total of 51 decision units (DU) in the project area in accordance with the State of Hawaii 
Department of Health (DOH) Technical Guidance Manual (TGM). The soil samples were 
then tested for Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH), organochlorine pesticides and total 
arsenic analysis. Results of the testing indicated that a majority of the soil samples had 
contaminants below the DOH environmental action level (EAL) and is unlikely to result in 
adverse health effects. All soil samples were within acceptable concentrations of 
contaminants with the exception of DU16 which contained concentrations of TPH Residual 
Range Organics (RRO) higher than the applicable EAL. Based on the results of the soil 
sampling, the DOH has been notified of the findings of the investigation. In addition, the 
following recommendations will be followed: 
 

o Remove impacted soils from the shallow interval of DU16, dispose of them at an 
acceptable landfill, conduct confirmation sampling to demonstrate that RRO no 
longer remains at this DU at concentrations greater than the EALs, and work with 
DOH to obtain a no further action (NFA) determination, OR  
 

o Work with DOH to develop an environmental hazard evaluation and environmental 
hazard management plan to manage impacted soils onsite and obtain an NFA 
determination with institutional controls. 
 

7 ITEM NO. E-1



The contaminated soils underlying DU16 will be removed or an environmental hazard 
management plan will be prepared prior to construction to ensure the project contains 
acceptable levels of contaminants that are unlikely to result in adverse health effects. 
 

• Scenic and Open Space Resources 
 The proposed action involves the construction of up to 250 single-family and multi-
family homes. These homes will be compatible with the surrounding character of the 
Lahaina area, especially the neighboring DHHL Villages of Leiali‘i Village 1-A 
development and the future Villages of Leiali‘i Development by HHFDC. The homes and 
multi-family buildings will not exceed two (2) stories in height. Furthermore, landscaping 
is incorporated into the project plans to reduce impacts from the development on open 
space and scenic resources. 
 

• Archaeological and Historic Resources 
Community consultation and background research conducted as part of the CIA identified 
the following cultural practices within the greater Wahikuli ahupuaʻa: 
 

1. Agricultural practices 
2. Plant gathering 
3. Fishing 
4. Limu gathering 
5. Burial practices 

 
No ongoing cultural practices were identified within the project site during community 
consultation. However, the project is located in the general vicinity of ongoing cultural 
practices, as noted above.  
 
Four (4) impacts to ongoing cultural practices were identified within the project vicinity 
during community consultation for this CIA. Consultation identified a number of concerns 
related to the environment and the broader community: 
 

1.  Impacts to ocean and marine resources from sedimentation from construction 
activities 

2.  Impacts to ocean and marine resources from sewage 
3.  Impacts to beach access from increased density and traffic 
4.  Impacts to freshwater resources 

 
 
The CIA proposed mitigation measures and considerations to promote and preserve 
cultural beliefs, practices, and resources of Native Hawaiians and other ethnic groups. The 
CIA recommendations and responses, where appropriate, are provided: 
 
1.  Edwin “Ekolu” Lindsey III expressed concern that sedimentation from 
construction activities could impact the ocean and marine resources. He also mentioned 
that sewage may potentially have “negative impacts to the ocean and resources.” He 
asked, “Do we have the capacity?” 
 

8 ITEM NO. E-1



To mitigate pollution from construction activity, temporary BMPs, such as silts fences, 
storm drain inlet protection, sediment traps, berms, and soil stabilization will be utilized to 
prevent sediment and runoff from flowing to the ocean or nearby waters. Permanent 
drainage improvements will include catch basins, drain inlets, manholes, drainlines, and 
detention basins to control runoff from the project in the future. In order to treat and manage 
future wastewater flows from the project, new gravity sewerlines will be constructed to 
connect to the existing sewer manholes in Leiali‘i Parkway. DHHL is coordinating with 
the County Department of Environmental Management to secure wastewater service to the 
Village 1-B subdivision. 
 
2. Mr. Lindsey stated that the proposed project will result in 
“increased density” and “increased traffic,” and stated that he is worried about the impact 
the increase in traffic will have on “all the kids and beach access”.  
 
A Traffic Impact Analysis Report (TIAR) was conducted for the proposed project to 
identify impacts on traffic conditions from the project and potential mitigation measures. 
Beach and shoreline will be maintained throughout construction implementation of the 
project.  
 
3.  Mr. Lindsey also expressed his concern regarding “water resources.” He asked, 
“Is there enough?” pointing out that, “We are struggling to have stream flow, let alone 
more drinking water.” 
 
As previously mentioned, the CWRM designated the Lahaina Aquifer Sector Area (ASA) 
as a Surface and Ground Water Management Area. DHHL has continued coordination with 
the DWS and CWRM to ensure the project’s proposed potable water usage is within the 
sustainable yield limits. Separately, CWRM is in the process of amending the interim 
instream flow standards (IFS) for the Honokōwai surface water hydrologic in order to 
restore stream flow. 
 
4.  Mr. Lindsey stated that “Mitigation projects will be necessary” to address the 
potential impacts that the increase in population density and traffic will have on beach 
access. 
 
Leialiʻi Parkway, intersecting with Honoapiʻilani Highway provides access to Wahikuli 
Beach Park. DHHL proposes improvements along Leiali‘i Parkway which include 
widening of Leiali‘i Parkway from two (2) lanes to four (4) lanes, restriping and relocation 
of the traffic signals at the intersection with Honoapi‘ilani Highway to help mitigate 
impacts from increases in traffic.     
 
5.  CSH recommends that, as part of the project’s environmental review process, that 
any potential effect of increased traffic and population density on beach access imposed 
by the proposed project be reviewed and, if appropriate, mitigated. 
 
The proposed project will be reviewed to ensure that the project does not restrict or inhibit 
access to the beach. Proposed roadway improvements are described in the “Roadways” 
Section of this report.   
 

9 ITEM NO. E-1



6.  Project construction workers and all other personnel involved in the construction 
and related activities of the project should be informed of the possibility of inadvertent 
cultural finds, including human remains. In the event that any potential historic properties 
are identified during construction activities, all activities will cease and the SHPD will be 
notified pursuant to HAR §13-280-3. In the event that iwi kūpuna (ancestral remains) are 
identified, all earth moving activities in the area will stop, the area will be cordoned off, 
and the SHPD and Police Department will be notified pursuant to HAR §13-300-40. In 
addition, in the event of an inadvertent discovery of human remains, the completion of a 
burial treatment plan, in compliance with HAR §13-300 and HRS §6E-43, is recommended. 
 
7.  In the event that iwi kūpuna and/or cultural finds are encountered during 
construction, project proponents should consult with cultural and lineal descendants of the 
area to develop a reinternment plan and cultural preservation plan for proper cultural 
protocol, curation, and long-term maintenance. 
 
Archaeological investigations were undertaken and documentation, including an HRS, 
Chapter 6E consultation package was prepared and submitted to the State Historic   
Preservation Division (SHPD). SHPD determined that an archaeological inventory survey 
(AIS) is required for the project. The AIS was conducted and submitted to the SHPD by 
Cultural Surveys Hawai‘i in June 2022. The AIS documented three (3) historic properties 
within the project area including State Inventory of Historic Places (SIHP) No. 50-50- 03-
08886, an asphalt-paved road and former plantation railroad corridor, SIHP No. 50-50-03-
08887 is a portion of the existing Lahaina, Kaanapali & Pacific (LK&P) railroad that was 
established as a tourist attraction in 1969. SIHP No. 50-50-03-08888 is an asphalt-paved 
road that was used for historic commercial agricultural operations and formerly labeled as 
“Main Industrial Road”. The AIS stated the identified historic properties would be 
impacted by project-related ground disturbance and recommended an “effect, with agreed 
upon mitigation commitments”. No further work was recommended for SIHP Nos. -08886, 
-08887, and -08888. The AIS sufficiently documented the three (3) sites and as such, no 
further historic preservation work was recommended. However, the AIS recommended that 
archaeological monitoring be completed during all ground altering activities. An 
Archaeological Monitoring Plan (AMP) was prepared and accepted by the SHPD. 
Archaeological monitoring will be undertaken for all construction-related ground altering 
activities in accordance with the AMP. Following all monitoring activities, an 
Archaeological Monitoring Report will be prepared and submitted to SHPD. 

  

10 ITEM NO. E-1



• Socioeconomic Environment 
The Villages of Leiali‘i Village 1-B project will provide new housing units to meet the 
housing shortage on Maui. Up to 250 homes will be made available for DHHL native 
Hawaiian beneficiaries. The Villages of Leali‘i project will provide short-term construction 
related employment and services. From a long-term perspective, the project will provide 
much-needed affordable housing in close proximity to employment locations in West 
Maui. The proposed housing will serve native Hawaiians seeking a primary residence and 
will not be for transient populations. Affordable housing reduces the portion of incomes 
residents must pay for rent, providing them with more disposable income. Significant 
adverse economic impacts are not anticipated. 
 

• Public Services 
The proposed project is adjacent to an urbanized area in Lahaina that is within existing 
service areas for fire protection, police and medical services. The proposed project will 
meet requirements of the Fire Code, as established in Chapter 16.04C of the Maui County 
Code. Also, in accordance with fire protection requirements of the Fire Code, fire hydrants 
will be designed and installed in conjunction with the project. Coordination with the Maui 
Police Department and Department of Fire and Public Safety will ensure that proposed 
improvements at the Leiali‘i Parkway and Honoapi‘ilani Highway intersection, as well as 
a potential increase in traffic through the area for residents residing in the Village 1-B 
subdivision, do not affect the ability of emergency service vehicles to enter and exit the 
district stations within the Lahaina Civic Center. 
 
The project site is located within the West Maui Impact Fee District, which was designated 
pursuant to Chapter 302A-1604, Hawai‘i Revised Statutes (HRS). DHHL will work with 
the State of Hawai‘i Department of Education (DOE) on an Educational Contribution 
Agreement for the Village 1-B project. 
 

• Recreational Facilities 
Coordination with the Department of Parks and Recreation will ensure that the proposed 
improvements along the Leiali‘i Parkway and Honoapi’ilani Highway intersection, as well 
as a potential increase in traffic through the area for residents residing in the Village 1-B 
subdivision, do not significantly impact public access to the Lahaina Civic Center, or the 
Wahikuli Wayside Park, located at the intersection of Leiali‘i Parkway and Honoapi‘ilani 
Highway. In addition, DHHL will provide pedestrian connectivity from Village 1-B to the 
Lahaina Civic Center, which will increase access and encourage alternative modes of 
transportation to nearby recreational opportunities. 
 
It is noted that the project area is within the West Maui Greenway Plan area. The West 
Maui Greenway Plan was developed by the Maui Metropolitan Planning Organization and 
published in September 2022. The West Maui Greenway is a planned 25-mile multi-use 
trail through West Maui which would connect Ukumehame to Lipoa Point. Development 
of the Greenway is dependent on securing funding for the environmental review, design 
and construction. The West Maui Greenway’s Segment 3 mauka alignment cuts through 
the middle of Village 1-B. DHHL has assessed the feasibility of the preferred alignment 
and notes that if incorporated, the preferred mauka alignment of the Greenway would result 

11 ITEM NO. E-1



in a reduction of lots, thus not allowing the DHHL to optimally fulfill its mission of 
providing housing opportunities to its beneficiaries. It is noted that the project does not 
preclude the development of Alternative A of the West Maui Greenway Segment 3. 
 

• Roadway and Airports Infrastructure 
The Traffic Impact Analysis Report (TIAR) prepared for the project selected the year 2030 
to reflect the project completion year. The Base Year 2030 scenario represents the traffic 
conditions within the study area without implementation of the project. The TIAR 
accounted for development of future phases of the Lahaina Bypass Road (LBR), which is 
a major bypass road parallel and mauka to Honoapiʻilani Highway that is expected to be 
completed in five (5) total phases to address regional traffic congestion within Lahaina. So 
far, three (3) of the five (5) phases have been constructed. The Base Year 2030 scenario 
assumes that the LBR is extended further north from its current terminus at Keawe Street 
to Kaka‘alaneo Drive, with a midway LBR connection to Honoapiʻilani Highway via a 
Kāʻanapali Connector Road at some point south of Kāʻanapali Parkway. 

 
Upon completion of the project, all study intersections are forecast to operate with similar 
LOS as Base Year 2030 traffic conditions, with or without completion of the LBR 
extension. Without the LBR extension, various movements will continue to operate over-
capacity similar to the Base Year 2030 Without LBR 1C scenario. With the LBR 1C, all 
study intersections will improve from the Base Year 2030 Without LBR 1C scenario and 
all previously identified overcapacity conditions will improve and operate below capacity 
due to traffic volume reductions on Honoapiʻilani Highway. All through movements will 
operate adequately or below capacity. Regionally, along Honoapiʻilani Highway, traffic 
generated by the project will increase by approximately 20 to 75 vehicles per direction per 
peak hour, which translates to a 1.3 percent increase in traffic in the Kāʻanapali region and 
2.2 percent increase in traffic in Lahaina Town when compared to the Base Year 2030. 
Due to generally low traffic increases as a result of the project the majority of movement 
vehicular delays generally increased minimally by 1 to 6 seconds. The following roadway 
improvements were recommended by the TIAR: 

 
Honoapiʻilani Highway/Leialiʻi Parkway 

 
o Lengthen the southbound left-turn lane to provide a minimum 300-foot 

storage length (exclusive of taper and deceleration length). 
 

In addition to the above, as part of the project, the DHHL is also proposing to widen Leialiʻi 
Parkway with the following modifications. It is noted that these improvements are not 
based on project traffic increases as discussed within the TIAR and are not a requirement 
of previous land use conditions or agency agreements. However, these improvements are 
being made in planning for eventual licensure of Leialiʻi Parkway to the County of Maui: 
 

o Maintain two (2) westbound lanes along Leialiʻi Parkway but restripe to 
delineate separate lanes from Honoapiʻilani Highway to Kaʻaahi Street. 
 

12 ITEM NO. E-1



o Widen eastbound lanes along Leialiʻi Parkway to provide one (1) exclusive left-
turn lane into Kaʻaahi Street and one (1) through lane continuing further up 
Leialiʻi Parkway from Honoapiʻilani Highway to Kaʻaahi Street. 

 
o Provide a new crosswalk across Kaʻaahi Street on the north leg of its 

intersection with Leialiʻi Parkway. 
 

o Upgrade the northeast and southeast curb ramps at the Honoapiʻilani 
Highway/Leialiʻi Parkway intersection and lengthen the marked crosswalk 
across Leialiʻi Parkway to accommodate the widening. 

 
DHHL will meet with the State of Hawaiʻi Department of Transportation for the acceptance 
of the TIAR. In addition, due to the project’s proximity to the Kapalua Airport, applicable 
permits from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) will be obtained.  
 

• Water System 
The proposed project’s water source will draw from the Honokōwai aquifer system in the 
Lahaina Aquifer Sector Area (ASA). The lots in Increment 1 below elevation 130 feet amsl 
will be supplied by the existing Lahaina water system, which is provided water from the 
1.5- MG Wahikuli Reservoir that is supplied by groundwater wells and treated surface 
water. Currently, the primary source of water is treated water from the Mahinahina Surface 
Water Treatment Facility (M-WTF) in Honokōwai. However, the DWS is developing two 
(2) wells above the M-WTF, collectively called the West Maui Source Development 
project, which will be able to contribute water to DWS’s water system. Since there is no 
existing reservoir in the UPZ that would be able to service the Increment 2 lots above 
elevation 130 feet, a new offsite storage reservoir is required and will be developed as part 
of a separate regional water system improvements project in Lahaina. The proposed 
project’s water source will draw from the Honokōwai Aquifer System in the Lahaina 
Aquifer Sector Area (ASA). According to the County of Maui Water Use Development 
Plan (WUDP), the Honokōwai Aquifer System has a sustainable yield of six (6) mgd and 
there is approximately 3.053 mgd pumped from the Honokōwai Aquifer System. 
Reservations have been made for the DHHL’s potable and non-potable water needs in West 
Maui as a public trust purpose.  
  
Water for Increment 2 of the project will be provided by DHHL’s Honokōwai Water 
System Improvements Project, which is a separate and distinct regional infrastructure effort 
that will also provide water to other West Maui developments, such as the DHHL’s 
Honokōwai Lands and HHFDC’s Villages of Leiali‘i project. The Honokōwai Water 
System Improvements Project is the subject of separate Chapter 343, HRS environmental 
review process.  
  
In addition to the DWS water system, the HHFDC owns the Wahikuli Irrigation Well 
which supplies non-potable water and services to Leiali‘i Parkway. The capacity of the 
well for irrigation use is 120,000 gpd. Village 1-B will require approximately 74,600 gpd 
of non-potable water for irrigation and the Leiali‘i Parkway widening will require an 
additional 250 gpd for irrigation of planters and the median. The total non-potable water 

13 ITEM NO. E-1



demand would be 74,850 gpd and would be within the anticipated maximum irrigation use 
of 120,000 gpd from the Wahikuli Irrigation Well. 

 
• Drainage System 

The project drainage improvements will include catch basins, drain inlets, manholes, 
drainlines, and detention basins. Runoff will be collected by catch basins or drain inlets 
along the roadways and then be conveyed via underground piping to one (1) of four (4) 
proposed onsite detention basins. In addition to onsite detention basins, two (2) new offsite 
detention basins will be installed to manage the runoff from areas mauka of the project. An 
existing offsite detention basin will also be expanded and will utilize the same existing 
outlet drainlines, proposed basins and will instead flow down the road to an existing offsite 
vegetated swale for water quality treatment.  
 
The proposed stormwater management system will reduce peak flows and provide water 
quality treatment to meet the County of Maui stormwater quality standards. The project 
will incorporate detention basins as a BMP for stormwater treatment. The basins will retain 
the required Water Quality Design Volume (WQDV), allowing suspended particles to 
settle and water to infiltrate. An appropriate maintenance plan will be developed during the 
design phase of the project and will include requirements for removal of accumulated 
sediments and debris, maintaining vegetation, and inspection. 

 
It is noted that a portion of the proposed Village 1-B subdivision and the area of the 
roadway improvements are located within the Special Management Area (SMA) for the 
island of Maui. The DHHL has determined that it is not subject to county zoning and  SMA 
permitting requirements pursuant to the Hawaiʻi Homes Commission Act, 1920.  This 
determination was submitted to the County of Maui, Department of Planning via letter, 
dated August 29, 2022. The Planning Department concurred with DHHL’s determination 
via Draft EA comment letter, dated January 18, 2023. It is noted that a portion of the offsite 
roadway improvements within the SMA and shoreline setback area being proposed as part 
of the proposed project will be located on lands not owned by DHHL. As such, DHHL will 
comply with SMA and shoreline setback permitting requirements for the proposed roadway 
improvements occurring on lands owned by the State of Hawai‘i and HHFDC. 

 
DHHL PLANNING SYSTEM CONSISTENCY: 
 
1.  General Plan  
 
The updated DHHL General Plan was adopted by the Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) in 
November 2022. The General Plan sets the vision and establishes goals and policies to guide the 
discussions and decision-making of the HHC. The General Plan guides DHHL plans, programs, 
and policies through year 2040, Guiding principles were also developed based on beneficiary 
consultation and input. The guiding principles are broad themes that articulate the key values 
important to beneficiaries. DHHL, and the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust. The proposed project is 
in consonance with the following guiding principles, goals and policies of the DHHL General Plan. 
 

Guiding Principles 

• ‘Auamo Kuleana: Acknowledge the shared kuleana of the Department, 

14 ITEM NO. E-1



beneficiaries, State, federal and county agencies, Hawaiian serving 
organizations, and all of Hawai‘i toward fulfilling the mission of the 
Hawaiian Home Lands Trust. Foster trust, communication, and 
transparency among all parties to work toward the Vision. 

• Returning Hawaiians to the Land: Actively facilitate returning native 
Hawaiians to their lands to support self- sufficiency and self-determination. 
Maintain a primary focus on using and acquiring lands suitable for 
development of homesteads. Explore and expand opportunities for 
beneficiaries to restore their relationship with and use Trust lands and 
resources. 

• Homestead Choice and Diversity: Offer a variety of homesteading 
opportunities to meet diverse beneficiary needs and desires. Explore 
creative models and innovative ideas for getting Hawaiians onto the land 
and cultivating healthy, thriving beneficiary communities. 
 

LAND USE PLANNING 

Goals 

• Utilize Hawaiian Home Land for uses most appropriate to meet the needs 
and desires of the beneficiary population. 

• Encourage a balanced pattern of growth into urban and rural growth 
centers. 

• Protect life and property from the effects of natural hazards and climate 
change on Hawaiian home lands. 

Policies 

• Provide space for and designate a balanced mixture of appropriate land 
uses, economic opportunities, and community services in a Native 
Hawaiian-friendly environment. 

• Prioritize the development of homestead communities in areas with suitable 
development conditions that are close to jobs, transportation, 
infrastructure, and services. 

• Assess vulnerability of populations, resources, and infrastructure across 
Hawaiian home lands to climate change and natural hazards and conduct 
climate resilience and adaptation planning in high vulnerability areas. 

• Maintain fire breaks adjacent to residential homestead communities in high 
wildfire risk areas through participation in Fire Wise programs and 
partnerships with DLNR, Fire Departments, and private landowners.  

 

15 ITEM NO. E-1



INFRASTRUCTURE GOALS, POLICIES 

Goal: 

• Provide and maintain infrastructure for homestead communities within 
resource limitations 

Policy: 

• Design infrastructure to County standards and license systems to the 
Counties whenever possible for development within Residential, 
Commercial, and Industrial areas. 
 

HOUSING 

Goal: 

• Increase the number of housing opportunities awarded each year. 

• Provide a mix of housing opportunities that reflect the needs and desires of 
native Hawaiian beneficiaries. 

 
Policies: 

• Prioritize housing for beneficiaries before considering other uses of Trust 
lands. 

• Provide a variety of residential types that match beneficiary needs in terms 
of housing products (owner-builder, turnkey, self-help, etc.), types of 
housing units (single family, multifamily, kupuna housing, rental, etc.) and 
financing. 

• Ensure the availability of a range of housing types and affordability to 
accommodate persons and families of all income levels and in locations that 
are convenient to employment and public and private facilities. 

 
2.  Maui Island Plan 
 
 Because the lands on which the proposed subdivision will be developed were acquired by 
the DHHL following adoption of the MIP, they are not yet designated by the MIP for a specific 
use. Acquiring these lands is consistent with the DHHL MIP goal to secure additional lands to 
meet the beneficiary demand for residential homesteads. The proposed project is in consonance 
with the Maui Island Plan’s policies related to increasing the delivery of residential homesteads to 
beneficiaries each year.   
  

16 ITEM NO. E-1



3.  Villages of Leiali‘i-Honokōwai Regional Plan 
 
 The Villages of Leialiʻi and Honokōwai Regional Plan identified the Village 1-B area as a 
future homestead area for up to 253 lots with a minimum lot size of 5,000 square feet to be accessed 
by Leialiʻi Parkway. The Villages of Leialiʻi and Honokōwai Regional Plan also identified 
improvements to the Leialiʻi Parkway and Honoapiʻilani Highway intersection as a priority project 
in order to serve future residents of Village 1-B, but also the mauka Villages of Leialiʻi lands to 
be developed by the HHFDC. In this regard, the proposed project is in alignment with the goals 
and project identified in the Villages of Leialiʻi and Honokōwai Regional Plan. 

 
FINDING OF NO SIGNIFICANT IMPACT: 
 
The “Significance Criteria”, Hawaiʻi Administrative Rules (HAR), Title 11, Chapter 200.1-13, 
Environmental Impact Statement Rules, were reviewed and analyzed to determine whether the 
proposed project will have significant impacts to the environment. 
 

1. Irrevocably commit a natural, cultural, or historic resource. 
 The proposed project commits approximately 51 acres of vacant land long 

envisioned for residential development for implementation of the project. There are 
no threatened or endangered species or critical habitats in the project area. 
Consultation has been initiated with the SHPD pursuant to Chapter 6E, HRS. An 
AIS was prepared and submitted to the SHPD in June 2022. Three (3) historic sites 
were documented in the AIS and no further historic preservation work was 
recommended for the sites. However, as recommended by the AIS, an AMP will 
be prepared and implemented in association with ground altering activities at the 
site. The CIA found that there are no ongoing traditional cultural practices within 
the project site. Mitigation measures in the form of BMPs will be implemented to 
prevent sedimentation and pollution to nearby freshwater and marine resources and 
access to the beach and marine resources will be maintained. Furthermore, should 
any potential historic properties be identified during construction activities, all 
activities will cease and the SHPD will be notified pursuant to Section 13-280-3, 
HAR. 

2. Curtail the range of beneficial uses of the environment. 
 The proposed action will be implemented adjacent to existing residential 

developments of a similar nature, and the commitment of land resources required 
for the proposed action will not curtail the range of beneficial uses of the 
environment. The subdivision site, although designated for agricultural use by Maui 
County Zoning and partially designated as “Prime” agricultural lands by the 
Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawai‘i (ALISH), has not been in 
agricultural production for some time. On the island of Maui, approximately 70,714 
acres of the total land area of the island are within the ALISH “Prime” Designation, 
this represents approximately 15 percent of the island. As such, the use of 51 acres, 
or 0.07 percent, of the “Prime” designated lands on Maui for residential housing is 
not considered a substantial adverse impact in the context of the overall Prime 
designated lands on Maui. The proposed use of the site for development of a new 
subdivision is compatible with surrounding residential uses. 

17 ITEM NO. E-1



3. Conflict with the State’s environmental policies or long-term environmental 
goals established by law. 

 The proposed action does not conflict with the policies and guidelines of Chapter 
343, HRS. An EA is being carried out to ensure the proposed project will not have 
significant adverse impacts on the environmental resources. While this project may 
cause adverse construction-related impacts, based on the analysis conducted in this 
EA, the adverse impacts are not anticipated to be significant. 
Where mitigation measures are required due to potential impacts attributed to the 
project, DHHL will implement those applicable measures to further reduce adverse 
impacts. 

4. Have a substantial adverse effect on the economic welfare, social welfare, or 
cultural practices of the community and State. 

 The proposed action will have a beneficial effect on the local economy during the 
short and long term. As previously discussed, positive economic and social impacts 
are anticipated as a result of the project, including construction-related jobs, real 
property assessment revenues, and contribution of water, wastewater, and 
educational assessment fees. Mitigation in the form of construction BMPs will be 
implemented to prevent impacts to traditional cultural practices identified within 
the Wahikuli ahupuaʻa, such as marine and freshwater fishing. In addition, access 
to the beach and marine resources will be maintained. As previously discussed, an 
AIS was prepared for the project and submitted to the SHPD, and archaeological 
monitoring will be undertaken in accordance with a SHPD-approved AMP. In 
addition, the project will provide single-family and multi-family residential leases 
to native Hawaiian beneficiaries on DHHL’s residential waitlist. Therefore, 
implementation of the proposed action will be beneficial to the overall social 
welfare of native Hawaiian beneficiaries on Maui.  

5. Have a substantial adverse effect on public health. 
 The project is not anticipated to result in long-term air or noise impacts. 

Furthermore, the proposed action is not anticipated to create significant direct or 
indirect foreseeable greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, and does not fall within the 
threshold of mandatory GHG reporting. As such, no adverse impact to public health 
or welfare is anticipated as a result of the proposed action. It is noted that the Phase 
1 ESA) prepared for the project did note the presence of recognized environmental 
conditions resulting from the former agricultural use, a previous fueling station, and 
previously demolished structures and, therefore, recommended that soil sampling 
be conducted. As such, a Phase 2 ESA involving soil sampling and testing was 
conducted revealing a majority of the project area contained acceptable levels of 
contaminants not likely to cause adverse health impacts. One area sampled 
contained higher levels of TPH contaminants. The contaminated soil will be 
properly removed and disposed of or properly managed in coordination with the 
DOH to prevent adverse health impacts from the contaminants.  

18 ITEM NO. E-1



6. Involve adverse secondary impacts, such as population changes or effect on 
public facilities. 

 The proposed project will provide needed additional residential lots in Lahaina, 
Maui for DHHL beneficiaries. While some residents of this new community may 
come from off island, most are expected to relocate from other areas on Maui. As 
such, the project is not anticipated to involve substantial secondary impacts due to 
population change. 

 Secondary impacts on public facilities are not anticipated. The DHHL will provide 
the necessary onsite and offsite infrastructure to support the proposed project. No 
substantial changes or effects on public facilities are expected with project 
implementation.  

 While DHHL does not need to comply with State or County land use plans and 
regulations for the development of the subdivision, it is noted that this development 
is in line with County long-range development and population growth projections. 

7. Involve a substantial degradation of environmental quality. 
 No substantial degradation of environmental quality resulting from the action is 

anticipated.  BMPs and appropriate erosion control measures will be utilized during 
the construction period. Drainage system improvements will be constructed in 
accordance with applicable regulatory design standards to ensure that surface 
runoff will not have an adverse effect on adjacent or downstream properties. 

 Any potential short-term impacts to air and noise quality during the construction 
phase of the project will be mitigated through employing BMPs. In the long term, 
the project will not adversely impact air quality and ambient noise. 

8. Be individually limited but cumulatively have substantial adverse effect upon 
the environment or involves a commitment for larger actions. 

 The proposed action is limited to the development of the proposed residential 
subdivision and related offsite improvements. The project is not a necessary 
precedent for a larger project; or a commitment to some larger project. The Hawai'i 
Housing Finance and Development Corporation (HHFDC) has proposed a master 
plan development mauka and south of Village 1-B.  While HHFDC’s Villages of 
Leiali‘i project is a separate and distinct action from the Village 1-B project, the 
proposed HHFDC development has been considered in the context of impact 
analysis conducted for this EA.  For example, the TIAR included the traffic counts 
from proposed development within the HHFDC Villages of Leiali‘i project in its 
Base Year 2030 traffic counts while regional planning for water source includes 
demands from the project.  As previously noted, HHFDC and DHHL are in 
discussions regarding a potential transfer of HHFDC's Villages of Leiali‘i lands. 
The transfer agreement has not been finalized.  Should the agreement be executed, 
DHHL would assess the previously prepared plans for the Villages of Leiali‘i and 
prepare a revised plan to be in line with DHHL’s mission.  Because future DHHL 
development of the Villages of Leiali‘i is entirely speculative at this time and 
DHHL’s development program for the lands is unknown, additional analysis of the 
cumulative impacts cannot be conducted at this time.  Nevertheless, potential 

19 ITEM NO. E-1



cumulative impacts of the HHFDC Villages of Leiali‘i project and the Village 1-B 
project have been analyzed.  

  
 The proposed project will stand on its own and is not a trigger for any other 

development. The cumulative impacts of the proposed project, together with other 
reasonably foreseeable actions, will include increased population and 
infrastructural demands, but this will not have a considerable effect on the 
environment. The DHHL will provide the necessary infrastructure to serve the 
proposed project. Drainage, wastewater, water, and roadway improvements will be 
designed to meet applicable local, State, and Federal regulations. The engineering 
and traffic reports prepared for the proposed project have assessed potential impacts 
and designed infrastructure systems in the context of future planned regional 
growth. It is noted that Increment 1 of the proposed subdivision will be able to be 
serviced by the existing County of Maui, Department of Water Supply system. 
However, water for Increment 2 of the subdivision will be provided by planned 
water source and distribution system improvements currently being pursued by the 
DHHL. These improvements will also provide service to HHFDC’s planned 
development at the Villages of Leialiʻi as the improvements are planned to be 
integrated into the DWS’ system for eventual dedication to the County. These 
improvements are the subject of a separate HRS, Chapter 343 EA being prepared 
by DHHL. However, these improvements are considered a separate and distinct 
project from both the DHHL’s and HHFDC’s overall Villages of Leialiʻi 
developments as they constitute a larger, regional infrastructure improvement 
project. Given the foregoing, the proposed project is not anticipated to cumulatively 
have considerable effect upon the environment, nor does it involve a commitment 
or larger actions.  

9. Have a substantial adverse effect on a rare, threatened, or endangered species, 
or its habitat. 

 A Flora and Fauna Survey report was prepared to ensure that any sensitive 
terrestrial flora/fauna biological resources within the project site would be 
identified and provided adequate protection. No rare, threatened, or endangered 
species of flora, fauna, avifauna, or important habitats were identified on the 
affected properties. The project site is located adjacent to existing residential 
developments of a similar nature. The project is not anticipated to substantially 
affect rare, threatened, or endangered species, or its habitat. 

10. Have a substantial adverse effect on air or water quality or ambient noise 
levels. 

 Construction activities will result in short-term air quality and noise impacts. Dust 
control measures, such as regular watering and sprinkling, and installation of dust 
screens will be implemented to minimize wind-blown emissions. In the short term, 
noise impacts will occur primarily from construction equipment. Equipment 
mufflers or other noise attenuating equipment, as well as proper equipment and 
vehicle maintenance, will be used during construction activities. Construction noise 
impacts will be mitigated through compliance with the provisions of the DOH 
Administrative Rules Title 11, Chapter 46, “Community Noise Control”. These 

20 ITEM NO. E-1



rules require a noise permit if the noise levels from construction activities are 
expected to exceed the allowable levels set forth in the Chapter 46 rules. 

 From the long-term perspective, the proposed project is not anticipated to 
significantly impact ambient air or noise quality in the region.  

 As such, with implementation of foregoing mitigation measures, the proposed 
project is not anticipated to detrimentally affect air or water quality or ambient noise 
levels. 

11. Have a substantial adverse effect on or be likely to suffer damage by being 
located in an environmentally sensitive area such as a flood plain, tsunami 
zone, sea level rise exposure area, beach, erosion-prone area, geologically 
hazardous land, estuary, fresh water, or coastal waters. 

 The proposed subdivision is located in Flood X (unshaded). This designation 
denotes an area of low flood risk and minimal flooding with no development 
restrictions. Portions of Honoapi‘ilani Highway roadway improvements are located 
in Flood Zone VE and Flood Zone A.  However, these improvements are limited to 
roadway restriping and relocation of existing traffic signals. The majority of the 
project site is located outside of the Tsunami Evacuation Zone; however, a small 
portion is located within the Extreme Tsunami Evacuation Zone, however no new 
homes are proposed in this area. In addition, the proposed homes are not located 
within the 3.2-foot sea level rise exposure area. 
Drainage improvements will be designed to mitigate runoff in accordance with 
County drainage and stormwater quality rules and regulations. During construction, 
recommended BMPs will be implemented for erosion and sedimentation control to 
minimize potential impacts to water quality.  

12. Have a substantial adverse effect on scenic vistas and viewplanes, day or night, 
identified in county or state plans or studies. 

 The proposed project involves the development of low-rise single-family and multi-
family homes. In the context of the surrounding land uses, which includes the 
Lahaina Civic Center, Lahaina Post Office, Village 1-A, and HHFDC lands 
proposed for development, the proposed action is not anticipated to have a 
significant adverse impact upon the scenic and open space resources of the area. 

13. Require substantial energy consumption or emit substantial greenhouse 
gasses. 
The proposed project will involve the commitment of fuel for construction 
equipment, vehicles, and machinery during construction and maintenance 
activities. Coordination with Hawaiian Electric Company, Ltd. (HECO) will be 
undertaken during the electrical plans preparation phase of work to ensure all 
operational parameters are addressed for the proposed project. The project will 
incorporate energy saving, sustainable features, including the use of solar water 
heating systems on all homes. 
In the context of the GHG Reporting Program (25,000 metric tons of C02 EQ), the 
relative effects GHG emissions is not considered significant for this proposed 
project. 

21 ITEM NO. E-1



 In summary, the project site is situated adjacent to existing residential uses of a similar 
nature, and in close proximity to recreational resources, services and commercial areas in 
Lahaina. This project will be developed in an area with existing infrastructure systems, and 
concurrently with required infrastructure system and drainage improvements. The 
proposed project is not anticipated to have a significant adverse impact on the surrounding 
physical, cultural and socioeconomic environments. Based on the foregoing analysis, it is 
anticipated that the proposed action qualifies for a Finding of No Significant Impact 
(FONSI) determination. 

FINAL EA PUBLICATION: 
  

EVENT DATE 
Informational Briefing on Final EA to HHC July 17-18, 2023 
Publication of Final EA August 8, 2023 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 DHHL staff respectfully requests issuance of a FONSI determination based on the Final 
EA presented herein, as recommended. 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS: 
 
Exhibit A. Project Location Map 
Exhibit B. Conceptual Subdivision Site Plan  
 

22 ITEM NO. E-1



EXHIBIT A. 
Property Location Map

23 ITEM NO. E-1



DHHL Villages of Leiali‘i Village 1-B
Property Location Map

ATA/2371 DHHL Vill of Leialii Ph 1B PERMITTING/Application/Figures/Revised Retention Basin Figures/Rev-Location Map

Prepared for: State of Hawai‘i, Department of Hawaiian Home Lands

Wahikuli
Wayside Park

DHHL Villages
of Leiali‘i

Village 1-A

Wahikuli

To Lahaina

Lahaina
Civic

Center Honoapi‘ilani Highway

Lāhainā
Post

Office

y
a

w
kr

a
P i‘il

ai
e

L

Source:  Esri, Maxair, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,
IGN, and the GIS User Community, County of Maui, Department of Planning

Future Villages of
Leiali‘i Development

by HHFDC

Proposed DHHL Villages
of Leiali‘i Village 1-B

Subdivision

Location of Proposed Roadway
and Pedestrian Improvements

Key

Tax Map Key

Location of Proposed 
Offsite Drainage Improvements

(2)4-5-021:007

(2)4-5-021:010

(2)4-5-021:014

(2)4-5-021:020

(2)4-5-021:021

(2)4-5-036:109

(2)4-5-036:110

(2)4-5-036:112

Pacific Ocean

0
350

700

Feet

175

ilapanaʻāK oT

ITEM NO. E-1 
EXHIBIT "A"



EXHIBIT B. 
Conceptual Subdivision  

Site Plan 
 

24 ITEM NO. E-1



DHHL Villages of Leiali‘i Phase 1-B
Conceptual Subdivision Site Plan

ATA/2371 DHHL Vill of Leialii Ph 1B PERMITTING/Application/Figures/Site_Plan

NOT TO SCALE

Prepared for: State of Hawai‘i, Department of Hawaiian Home Lands

DHHL Villages of Leali‘i Phase 1-B

y
a

w
kr

a
P

 i‘il
ai

e
L

Future Villages of
Leiali‘i Development

by HHFDC

DHHL Villages of
Leiali‘i Phase 1-A

Source: Austin, Tsutsumi & Associates, Inc.

Increment 1
86 Single-Family Lots

Increment 2
Single Family or Multi-Family Units

(Up to 164 Units)

Lāhainā
Civic

Center Lāhainā
Civic

Center

ITEM NO. E-1 
EXHIBIT "B"



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

Villages of Leialiʻi, Village 1-B Subdivision Project
Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI)
Final Environmental Assessment (FEA)

TMK Nos. (2)4-5-021:007 (por.), 010(por.), 014(por.), 020, 021(por.), (2)4-5-036:109, 110, 112(por.), 
and Honoapiʻilani Highway Right-of-Way(por.)

Wahikuli, District of Lahaina, Maui, Hawai‘i
Item No. E-1
July 17, 2023



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

PURPOSE OF PRESENTATION

Request HHC to approve a Finding of No 
Significant Impact (FONSI) Determination

After approval of FONSI and Presentation to 
HHC submit the FEA for the Villages of Leialiʻi, 
Village 1-B Subdivision Project for final 
comment and challenges, if any.

1

2



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

PROJECT LOCATION
New DHHL well

Villages of 
Leialiʻi 1-B 
FONSI/FEA 

Area

Existing 
Villages of 
Leialiʻi 1-A

(County of Maui)

(Subsistence Ag)

HHFDC Villages of Leiali’i
Master Plan EIS Area

Honokawai Master 
Plan EA Area

Honokawai Water 
System EA Area

(County of Maui)



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

OVERALL PROJECT LOCATION

Highway and 
Parkway 

Improvements: Leg 
CIP: $9M

Total Infrastructure 
Budget Estimate:

Offsite improvements:
Act 279 FY23 :$15M

Onsite improvements:
Act 279 FY24: $68M



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

SINGLE-FAMILY LOT DEVELOPMENT
Increment 2:
• 96 Single 

Family Lots
• 7,500 sq ft 

ave.
• Above 130’ 

contour
• Requires 

new high 
level water 

tank

Increment 1: 
• 86 Single 

Family Lots
• 7,500 sq ft. 

ave.
• Below 130’ 

contour



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

INCREMENT 2 MULTI-FAMILY OPTION
Increment 2:
• 164 Multi-

Family Units
• Above 130’ 

contour
• Requires new 

high level 
water tank



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
Offsite improvements

• Two (2) new offsite retention basins mauka of Village 1-B, on lands owned by
Hawai‘i Housing Finance and Development Corporation (HHFDC)
• Adjustment of the outlet drainage pipes in the existing retention basin mauka
of Village 1-A, on lands owned by HHFDC, and enlargement of the basin
• Grading and development of drainage interceptor ditches mauka of Village
1-B, on lands owned by HHFDC
• Roadway improvements to Leialiʻi Parkway and Honoapiʻilani Highway
• Roadway repairs to existing portions of Leiali‘i Parkway
• Phase 1-B Increment 2 requires new high level water tank and
improvements to Lahaina Civic Center Booster Pump facility. (HHFDC Re-
Masterplan EIS, 2012)



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

EA SUMMARY CONCLUSIONS
 Draft EA was published in the December 23, 2022, edition of the 

Environmental Review Program’s (ERP) Environmental Notice 
Bulletin. (Comments and responses contained in FEA)

 Proposed subdivision and land use is not anticipated to have a 
significant impact on the surrounding environment

 Project will implement necessary mitigation measures                 
(Ex. Best Management Practices, archaeological monitoring)

 Project supports providing homestead opportunities for 
beneficiaries and water use are consistent with the goals of the 
DHHL General Plan, Maui Island Plan, and Water Policy Plan



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

NEXT STEPS FOR THE PROJECT

 Approve FONSI determination for the Village 1-B Subdivision 
Project from HHC and submit Final EA to State Environmental 
Review Program for publication on August 8, 2023.

 Implement funding allocated from HHC to fund the Village 1-B 
Increment 1 Project infrastructure through Act 279 and other 
appropriations from HHFDC and State Legislature, as appropriate.

 Complete design and construction of the Village 1-B Increment 1 
Project

 Procure developer/contractor for home construction



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

ESTIMATED TIMELINE 
EA Complete (assuming no challenge)

Continue detailed Engineering Design

Procurement of site contractor and developer

Begin Subdivision Sitework Construction

Begin Home Construction

First Home Occupancy 

TIMELINE SUBJECT TO CHANGE

SUMMER 2023

FALL 2024

SPRING 2025

WINTER 2025

SUMMER 2026



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

M A H A L O

www.dhhl.hawaii.gov







DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS
 Act 279 IMPLEMENTATION FY 2023
PROJECT STATUS AS OF June 30, 2023

Island FY23 
Subdivision/Project

Lots Phase Act 279 Budget 
approved by 
HHC 8/15/22

Amend #1 
approved to 

12/31/22

Amend #2    
6/26/23

 Encumbrance in 
process 

 ENCUMBERED as 
of June 30, 2023 

 EXPENDITURE 
s
h
i
f
t
t

Status Lead Staff 

Hawaii Laiopua Village 2 
(Includes N. Kona 
Water Development 
KS Well 2 and 2A

200 Land 4,000,000$       4,000,000$      -$   -$      Continuing negotiations with Kamehameha 
Schools and County of Hawaii Department of 
Water Supply. Conducting survey and appraisal of 
proposed site.

Andrew

Hawaii North Kona Water 
Development
GIANULIAS SITE

Land  Letter of intent from Owners for $9,260,000. 
Potential use of Leg CIP, Act 88, not Act 279 
General Funds.

Andrew

Lanai Lanai Residence Lots 
Offsite Infrastructure

75 Design 2,000,000$       2,000,000$      Consultant selected; negotiating scope of work 
and fees.  Coordination with Pulama Lanai on 
offsite infrastructure capacity. Contract being 
formulated. Encumber in FY24.

Robert

Maui Pu'unani Homestead 
Subdivision

161 Construct
ion

17,500,000$     17,500,000$    17,500,000$     17,171,944$          1,101,984.00$      Construction Contract Awarded to Maui Kupono 
Builders; $17,171,944; construction 
commencement estimated Spring 2023. 
Construction contract executed. Development 
agreement includes developer construction of 
137 turnkey homes and 24 improved vacant lots.     
Groundbreaking ceremony on May 24, 2023.

Robert

Maui Pu'unani Homestead 
Subdivision (Offsite 
Water Tank)

Design/  
Construct
ion

-$        5,509,000$       5,509,000$      Part of Pu'unani Homestead Subdivision offsite 
storage tank requirement. Developer continuing 
to work with County on construction plan 
approval. Target Summer 2023 for construction 
bidding. 

Robert

Maui Leialii 1B Offsite Water Construct
ion

15,000,000$     13,533,000 -$       Final EA and FONSI approval planned for July 
2023. DHHL proposes to prepare RFP/RFQ to 
wrap around Leialii Offsite water, highway 
improvements and Leialii 1B subdivision.

Neil

Maui Honokowai 
Subsistence Ag Ph. 1

50 Design 1,467,000$      1,470,000$       1,470,000$      Design contract encumbered $1,470,000.  
Coordination with County of Maui and Pulelehua 
private developer for installation of R-1 waterline 
for irrigation purposes.  Survey and design in 
process.

Neil

Oahu Kaupea, Phase 2 Land 8,250,000$       8,250,000$      8,250,000$       8,250,000$      8,250,000$      Transfer Agreement Executed; funds transfered 
to HHFDC.$8.25M Encumbered December 2022; 
funds transferred shortly thereafter.  Acquistion 
completed.

Darrell

ITEM NO. E-2 
EXHIBIT "A"



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS
 Act 279 IMPLEMENTATION FY 2023
PROJECT STATUS AS OF June 30, 2023

Island FY23 
Subdivision/Project

Lots Phase Act 279 Budget 
approved by 
HHC 8/15/22

Amend #1 
approved to 

12/31/22

Amend #2     
6/26/23

 Encumbrance in 
process 

 ENCUMBERED as 
of June 30, 2023 

 EXPENDITURE  
s
h
i
f
t 
t

Status Lead Staff 

Kaupea, Phase 2 60 Dev 
Agree

0 Development Agreement RFP.  Approximate 
budget is $15,000,000. Three (3) Proposals 
received on 4/28/23. RFP review in process. 
Addendum to include LIHTC.

Darrell

Oahu East Kapolei II 
Backbone 
Infrastructure

Design 3,000,000$       3,000,000$      33,080$             33,080$                  33,080$                 Design funds encumbered with HHL Trust Fund. 
Subdivision map/Construction plans in progress. 
Requisition for sewer fees for backbone--3 lots. 
Chair directs RFQ incorporating backbone 
infrastructure, East Kapolei II D, IIE, and IIF; prep 
for Summer 2023 issuance.

Darrell

Oahu East Kapolei IIA 300 Dev 
Agree

14,000,000$     14,000,000$    -$                   RFP/RFQ scheduled for Fall 2023 for multifamily 
rental development. Shift funding to FY24.  HHC 
Budget Amendment planned for June 2023.

Darrell

Oahu East Kapolei IIE 142 Dev 
Agree

21,000,000$     21,000,000$    -$                   RFQ scheduled for Summer 2023. Shift funding to 
FY24. HHC Budget Amendment planned for June 
2023. Chair directs RFQ incorporating backbone 
infrastructure, East Kapolei II D, IIE, and IIF.

Darrell

Kauai Hanapepe Residence 
Lots, Phase 2

82 Construct
ion

23,000,000$     23,000,000$    18,800,126$     17,800,126$          Construction contract awarded to Hawaiian 
Dredging. Follow up with County of Kauai for title 
sheet approvals.  Plan for groundbreaking in 
Summer 2023.

Neil

Statewide Land/Project 
Acquisition

Professio
nal 
Services

1,500,000$       1,500,000$      1,500,000$       $1,500,000 $26,000 Bowers + Kubota Consulting providing project 
management support, including feasibility 
studies, survey and appraisal for Act 279 projects.

Darrell/  
Stewart

Land/Project 
Acquisition

Dev 
Agree

33,500,000$     33,500,000$    RFP let in November  2022; 7 Offers submitted. Darrell

Oahu Proposal "A"
Ewa Villages (Haseko)

142 Proposal Acceptable                               Acquistion: 
$17,646,772      Source: NAHASDA                                     
Development:   $20,239,443   Source: Act 279  
Proposal Accepted; acquisition and development 
agreement in process.                  

RFP Team

ITEM NO. E-2 
EXHIBIT "A"



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS
 Act 279 IMPLEMENTATION FY 2023
PROJECT STATUS AS OF June 30, 2023

Island FY23 
Subdivision/Project

Lots Phase Act 279 Budget 
approved by 
HHC 8/15/22

Amend #1 
approved to 

12/31/22

Amend #2    
6/26/23

 Encumbrance in 
process 

 ENCUMBERED as 
of June 30, 2023 

 EXPENDITURE 
s
h
i
f
t
t

Status Lead Staff 

Maui Proposal "B"
Wailuku (DDC2 LLC)

207 43,445,272$     $45,038,800 Proposal Acceptable    
Acquistion: $5,200,000         
Development:   $38,245,272      
Total Acq + Dev =   $43,445,272      
Proposal Accepted; Development Agreement in 
execution stage.  Encumber by June 30, 2023.  
$1,593,000 added for GET.        

RFP Team

Hawaii Proposal "C"
Kaumana (Avalon 
Development)

168 2,000,000$       2,000,000$      2,000,000$      Proposal Acceptable for Acquisition Only      
Acquistion: $2,000,000     Source: Act 279       
Development:  $ 40,836,000   Not acceptable  
Sale closed 3/31/23.  Currently land bank; Honolu 
is priority area.          

RFP Team

Maui Proposal "D"
Waiehu (DDC3 LLC)

366 95,129,572$     $95,129,572 Proposal Acceptable       
Acquistion: $12,240,000     Source: Act 279        
Development:  $82,889,572   Source: Act 279  
Proposal Accepted; draft Development 
Agreement in review. Potentially encumber by 
June 30, 2023.  Request for Allotment of $21M to 
B&F and Gov on 6/13/23.

RFP Team

Statewide Project 
Financing/Partnership
s

Dev 
Agree

30,000,000$     30,000,000$    RFQ in Summer 2023. Propose budget 
amendment to shift funding to FY24. 

Darrell

Total 1953 172,750,000$   172,750,000$  193,637,050$   -$   193,902,522.00$  11,411,064.00$    11/17/22 $172.75M ALLOTMENT released by
Governor.
1/26/23 $172.75M ALLOTMENT ADJUSTMENTS 
FOR 2ND AND 3RD Q APPROVED. 6/27/23 
$21,000,000 G funds released by Gov/B&F

ADDITIONAL 
ALLOTMENT 
REQUIRED, 
SUBJECT TO  
CONTRACT 
NEGOTIATIONS

 ENCUMBRANCE 
IN PROCESS 

ENCUMBERED $52.85M limit on 
expenditure per 
MOE

ITEM NO. E-2 
EXHIBIT "A"



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
THIRTY-SECOND LEGISLATURE, 2023
STATE OF HAWAII

HOUSE RESOLUTION

ESTABLISHING A LEGISLATIVE WORKING GROUP TO OVERSEE THE
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS’ EXECUTION OF FUNDS
APPROPRIATED PURSUANT TO ACT 279, SESSION LAWS OF HAWAII
2022, TO ADDRESS THE BENEFICIARY WAITING LIST.

WHEREAS, one of the primary responsibilities of the
2 Department of Hawaiian Home Lands is to administer the
3 Department’s homesteading program and provide its native
4 Hawaiian beneficiaries with 99-year homestead leases for
5 residential, agricultural, or pastoral purposes; and
6

7 WHEREAS, the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands’ homestead
8 waitlist currently has more than twenty—eight thousand
9 individuals, with many beneficiaries languishing on the waitlist

10 for decades; and
11

12 WHEREAS, Act 279, Session Laws of Hawaii 2022 (Act 279)
13 appropriated a historic $600,000,000 to the Department of
14 Hawaiian Home Lands to address the needs of native Hawaiians on
15 the Department’s waitlist; and
16

17 WHEREAS, Act 279 required uhe Department of Hawaiian Home
18 Lands to submit a strategic plan, including findings,
19 recommendations, and any proposed legislation, to the
20 Legislature by December 10, 2022; and
21

22 WHEREAS, the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands has until
23 June 30, 2025, to encumber all funds for specific purposes; now,
24 therefore,
25
26 BE IT RESOLVED by the House of Representatives of the
27 Thirty-second Legislature of the Stare of Hawaii, Regu]ar
28 Session of 2023, that a legislative working group be established

2023—0513 HR HMSO—2
I H) LII IIH

1 IiII IUI [I

ITEM NO. E-2 
EXHIBIT "B"



Page2

H.R. F\BD. (0

I to oversee the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands’ execution of
2 the funds appropriated pursuant to Act 279, Session Laws of
3 Hawaii 2022, to address the beneficiary waitlist; and
4
5 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the working group consist of
6 the following members designated as follows:
7
8 (1) The Honorable Troy N. Hashimoto, Representative from
9 the Tenth District, who shall serve as Chair;

10

11 (2) The Honorable David A. Tarnas, Representative from the
12 Eighth District;
13

14 (3) The Honorable Daniel Holt, Representative from the
15 Twenty-Eighth District;
16

17 (4) The Honorable Scott Y. Nishimoto, Representative from
18 the Twenty-Third;
19

20 (5) The Honorable Mahina Poepoe, Representative from the
21 Thirteenth District; and
22
23 (6) The Honorable Gene Ward, Representative from the
24 Eighteenth District; and
25

26 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the working group submit a
27 report of its findings and recommendations to the House of
28 Representatives no later than twenty days prior to the
29 commencement of the Regular Session of 2024; and
30

31 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the report include an analysis
32 of topics, including:
33

34 (1) The leveraging or maximization of the $600,000,000
35 appropriated;
36

37 (2) Alternative financing mechanisms for beneficiaries and
38 developers; and
39
40 (3) Alternative housing development options, other than
41 homestead lot development; and

2023—0513 HR HMSO—2 2

II II1l1III) 11111 I I III IJIIIIIII1III III IIII II

ITEM NO. E-2 
EXHIBIT "B"



H.R. 1\Ic. (0

2 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this
3 Resolution be transmitted to the Chairperson of the Hawaiian
4 Homes Commission.

OFFERED BY:

__________________________

/fJ

2023—0513 HR HMSO—2 3

II II H H iH

ITEM NO. E-2 
EXHIBIT "B"



Page 4

H.R. NO. 10

2023-0513 HP. HMSO-2

.

ITEM NO. E-2 
EXHIBIT "B"



Page5

H.R. ric. (0

C

JAN 311 2023

2023-0513 HR HMSO-2

ITEM NO. E-2 
EXHIBIT "B"



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Item E-3
For Information Only

July 17-18, 2023

Papakolea and Isenberg
Project Updates



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Papakolea, Kewalo and Kalawahine

KEWALO

PAPAKOLEA

KALAWAHINE



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Papakolea Sewer Improvements Purpose

• Repair and/or replace 
damaged and 
undersized pipes

• To upgrade sewer 
improvements and 
access which comply 
with City and County 
Standards Before

After

During



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Papakolea Sewer Improvements

Total cost: $13 Million Total est. cost: $55 Million

Phase 1  Completed                                    Phase 2 Proposed



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Papakolea Sewer Improvements Phase 2A

• Initiate engineering designs in 2019

• Estimated Start of Construction 
2024, subject to funding

• 3,500+ Linear feet, 8-in pipe
sewer manholes & laterals

• Method:  
• Pipe Bursting and 
• Open Trench

• Cost: Approx. $5 million



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Papakolea Sewer Improvements Phase 2A – Estimate $5M



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Papakolea Sewer Improvements Phase 2B
• Phase 2B 

• Initiate engineering designs in 2023

• Est. Start of Construction 2025/26, subject 
to funding and coordination with City 
projects

• 6,500+ Linear feet, 8-in pipe

sewer manholes & laterals       

• Reroute flows from homes west of 
Tanatalus Dr.  Requires new sewer line 
along Auwaiolimu, and downstream 
upgrades in City’s System

• Upsize ex sewer line along Auwaiolimu 
from 8” to 12”.  Requires coordination with 
City’s downstream improvements.

• Cost: Approx. $50 million



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Papakolea Sewer Improvements Sewer Easement Conditions

• Lessees shall allow contractors access to repair or replace 
sewerlines.

• Lessees shall not block, build nor plant trees over sewerline and 
other improvements.  

• Any improvements over the sewerline will NOT be replaced by 
the City or DHHL, should repair work be required.

• Sewer lateral maintenance, including blockage remediation is the 
responsibility of the Lessee.

• Hawaiian Homes Commission approval required to amend  
approximately 46 leases with new sewer easements.



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kapahu Street Rockfall Improvements



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Papakolea Kapahu St Slope Improvements

• Slope and Rockfall Stabilization
• Construction in Progress
• Scheduled Completion: August 31, 2023
• Cost:  $6.9 Million



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kapahu St. Rockfall Improvements
Progress Update – Completed Areas



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kapahu St. Rockfall Improvements
Bottom of Slope, Before/After slope scaling



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kapahu St. Rockfall Improvements
Makai Section, Before/After slope scaling



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kapahu St. Rockfall Improvements
Slope Scaling Work



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kapahu St. Rockfall Improvements
Installation of Wire Mesh



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kapahu St. Rockfall Improvements
Installation of Drainage Swale?



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

2312 & 2316 Kapahu Street (Kema/ Nagasako)

• Structure Stabilization
• Anticipated Construction Start: August 2023
• Cost: $1.395 Million



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

2312 & 2316 Kapahu Street (Kema/ Nagasako)

Front view of the house Back view of the house



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

2312 & 2316 Kapahu Street (Kema/ Nagasako)

Shifting structural post Cracks in the interior walls



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kauhane Street Slope Stabilization



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kauhane St. Slope Stabilization
Site Plan



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kauhane St. Slope Stabilization
Existing Slope Condition



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kauhane St. Slope Stabilization
Installation of Shotcrete slope protection



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – INFORMATION & COMMUNITY RELATIONS OFFICE

Kauhane St. Slope Stabilization
Construction Complete March 29, 2023



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

2403 Kaululaau Street and 2147 Tantalus Drive

2403 Kaululaau Street 2147 Tantalus Drive

• Retaining Wall Stabilization
• Construction in Progress
• 2403 Kaululaau Street Construction Complete March 2023
• 2147 Tantalus Drive Construction to start pending permit.
• Time of Performance:  30 Calendar Days
• Cost: $966,000



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

2403 Kaululaau Street 
Before/After - Retaining Wall



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

2403 Kaululaau Street 

Before/After - Sidewalk



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

2147 Tantalus Drive

• Retaining Wall Stabilization
• Anticipated Construction Start: Pending 

permit
• Time of Performance: 30 Calendar Days



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

820 Isenberg Re-development
Background

DHHL acquired the property from DLNR 
in 1995.

Lot Area: 82,493 SF (1.893 acres)

Current use: None

August 2019: DHHL issued an RFP to 
demolish the former Stadium 
Bowl-o-drome bowling alley and 
redevelop the property as a multi-
family residential affordable-rent 
facility for native Hawaiian 
beneficiaries.



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

820 Isenberg Re-development
Developer: Stanford Carr Development

Proposed Development:
• 210’, 23-story, 271-unit high rise on the 

site’s western edge
• 4-story, 278-stall parking structure lined 

with 7 townhouse units along the broad 
side adjacent to the park

• 4,680 SF of retail space along Isenberg 
Street, plus 18 on-grade parking stalls

Schedule:
• December 2021: Draft Environmental 

Assessment
• April 2022: Finding of No Significant 

Impact approved by HHC
• May 2022: Act 248, SLH 2022 included 

$41.5 million to HHFDC to provide 
financing for the project

• November 2022: HHFDC awards other 
financing

• Late Q1 2023: Construction begins
• Late Q1 2025: Construction complete

• 3 – 6 months prior to end of 
construction: Offer of rental units to 
beneficiaries



HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

JULY 17 & 18, 2023 

F- ITEMS

LAND MANAGEMENT DIVISION 



ITEM NO. F-1 
 

STATE OF HAWAII 
 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
 

July 17-18, 2023 
 
To:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 
From:  Peter “Kahana” Albinio, Jr., Acting Administrator 

Land Management Division 
 

Subject: Approval to Extension of Lease Term Expired or Scheduled to Expire for various 
General Leases, Kaei Hana I Industrial Subdivision, Waiakea, South Hilo, Hawaii 
TMK Nos. (3) 2-2-060:052, 061, 062, 068, 070, 071, 072  

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION.ACTION 
 

That the Hawaiian Homes Commission grant its approval to the following: 
 
1. A one-year extension to the expired general leases (General Lease Nos. 126, 129 & 

132), and if need to for expiring general leases (General Lease Nos. 140, 142, 141 
and 146), as authorized under Chapter 171-40, titled Expired lease; holdover, as 
amended, to allow the lessees to continue to hold the land upon such rent, terms and 
conditions as the Hawaiian Homes Commission may prescribe; and 
 

2. To negotiate and complete agreement for up to an additional nine (9) years for a total 
ten (10) year extension to lease term and modification of the ground lease rent, as 
authorized under Chapter 171-36 (b), Hawaii Revised Statutes, as amended, so that 
the aggregate of the original 55 year term and the extended 10 year term span a total 
of 65 years, for each of the respective General Leases identified below, located within 
the Kaei Hana I Industrial Subdivision in Waiakea, South Hilo, Island of Hawaii (See 
Exhibits “A”): 
 

Tax Map Key 
No. 

GL 
No.  

General Lessee Current 
Annual Lease 
Rent 

Land Area Proposed 
Extended Term & 
Date 

(3)2-2-060-071 126 Big Island Toyota, Inc. $26,325.00 40,500 sq.ft. 10 yrs; 1/1/2023-
12/31/2033 

(3)2-2-047:061 129 Kenneth L. Antonio $16,575.00 35,284 sq.ft. 10 yrs; 3/2/2023-
3/1/2033 

(3)2-2-060:072 132 Big Island Toyota, Inc. $37,920.00 48,561 sq.ft. 10 yrs; 5/1/2023-
4/30/2033 

(3)2-2-060:062 
& 063 

140 A&A Hawaii, Inc. $32,500.00 32,322 sq.ft. 10 yrs; 1/15/2024-
1/14/2034 

(3)2-2-060:068 
& 069 

142 Tony Hawaii Hilo LLC $51,600.00 39,980 sq.ft. 10 yrs; 6/15/2024-
6/14/2034 

(3)2-2-060:070 141 Big Island Car Wash, Inc. $25,938.00 21,408 sq.ft. 10 yrs; 6/15/2024-
6/14/2034 



July 2023 

ITEM NO. F-1 
2 

 

(3)2-2-060:052 
& 053 

146 WKL Enterprises, LLC $34,200.00 40,500 sq.ft. 10 yrs; 6/16/2024-
6/15/2034 

  
The approval is subject to the following: 
 
1. Upon approval of the extension of the subject general leases, Land Management 

Division (LMD) shall hire one or more independent appraisers in the manner 
provided for in the general lease to determine the lease rent for the respective 10-year 
extension, subject to the review and approval of the Chairman, Hawaiian Homes 
Commission. 
 

2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the subject general leases as 
amended, the lease rents for the 10-year extended period shall not be less than the 
rents in place immediately preceding the effective date of the extension of the 
respective lease term. 
 

3. Each General Lessee shall continue to pay the monthly rent currently due under their 
General Lease until the new lease rent is determined by an independent appraiser as 
set forth in Paragraph 1 above.  
 

4. If the rental for the extended period has not been determined prior to the expiration of 
the preceding rental period, the General Lessee shall make up the deficiency, if any 
within sixty (60) days after the new rental has been so determined. 
 

5. A one-time lease extension fee shall be assessed by the department to each General 
Lessee.  The extension fee shall be 20% of the new annual lease rent as established by 
appraisal and shall be due and payable within sixty (60) days after the new rental has 
been so determined. 
 

6. There is a $75.00 documentation fee due after approval is granted by the Hawaiian 
Homes Commission. 

 
7. The determination of fair market ground lease rent for the extended term shall not be 

subject to any arbitration procedure. 
 

8. The General Lessee must be in full compliance of the terms and conditions of the 
subject lease at the time of execution of the extension. 
 

9. The Amendment document for the extension of the lease term of each of the subject 
General Lease shall be subject to the review and approval of the Department of the 
Attorney General. 
 

10. The Chairman of the Hawaiian Homes Commission is authorized to set forth any 
additional terms and conditions which shall ensure and promote the purposes of the 
demised premises. 
 



July 2023 

ITEM NO. F-1 
3 

 

11. Except as otherwise modified herein, all other terms and conditions of the subject 
General Leases shall continue and remain in full force and effect. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Kaei Hana I Industrial Subdivision with 89 lots was development by the Department of Hawaiian 
Home Lands (DHHL) in the 1960s.  Most of the lots are half-acre lots.  DHHL started issuing 
industrial general leases from 1966 and most of the 55-year leases have expired in 2021 or will 
expire soon. 
 
The seven (7) general lessees listed above have indicated a desire to extend their respective lease 
terms and have all agreed to the conditions for the extension as proposed by the department.  The 
Lessee must be in full compliance of the lease agreement, meaning current in rent, the insurance 
certificates are up to date and the property is well maintained.  The Lessee must also be in 
compliance with the stipulation provided in Chapter 171-36(b) in which the demised premises 
have been used substantially for the purpose for which they were originally leased; the aggregate 
of the initial term and the extension granted will not be for more than sixty-five years; and the 
rental for the extension period will be determine as the fair market rental at the time of the 
extension  
 
DHHL currently has several vacant and surrendered lots within the subdivision and LMD will be 
working on offering these lots for long term industrial leases.  Instead of taking back the expired 
leases, LMD recommends allowing extension for these existing general leases in good standing 
to avoid flooding the market with too many available lands at one time as well as continue to 
have a steady stream of revenue for the Trust. 
 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
Act 114, enacted into law by the 1994 Hawaii Legislature, amends Section 171-36, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes, relating to Lease restriction; generally.  Section 171-36(b)(c), Hawaii Revised 
Statutes, as amended, allows for extension to a lease term. 
 
Section 204(a)(2) of the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended, reads in part “In 
the Management of any retained available lands not required for leasing under Section 207(a), 
the Department may dispose of such lands to the public, including native Hawaiians, on the same 
term, conditions, restrictions and uses applicable to the disposition of public lands as provided in 
Chapter 171, Hawaii Revised Statutes, provided that the Department may not sell or dispose of 
such land in fee simple…” 
 
Section 171-36(b), Hawaii Revised Statutes, as amended, states in part that “…The 
[commission], from time to time, upon the issuance or during the term of any intensive 
agricultural, aquaculture, commercial, mariculture, special livestock, pasture, or industrial lease, 
may: (1) modify or eliminate any of the restrictions specified in subsection (a); (2) Extend or 
modify the fixed rental period of the lease; provided the aggregate of the initial term and any 
extension granted shall not exceed sixty-five years; or (3) Extend the term of the lease…provided 
that the approval of any extension shall be subject to the following:  (1) The demised premises 



July 2023 

ITEM NO. F-1 
4 

 

have been used substantially for the purpose for which they were originally leased; (2) The 
aggregate of the initial term and any extension granted shall not be for more than sixty-five 
years; (3) In the event of a reopening, the rental for any ensuing period shall be the fair market 
rental at the time of the reopening; …(7) The rules of the [commission], setting forth any 
additional terms and conditions, which shall ensure and promote the purposes of the demised 
lands.” 
 
Section 10-4-1 of the Department Administrative Rules, as amended, states in part that “…The 
department may lease, license or otherwise deal with any available lands as may not be 
immediately needed for the purposes of the Act as provided by Section 204(a)(2) of the act and 
Chapter 171, HRS, upon such terms and conditions as to it may deem fair reasonable.”  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Land Management Division respectfully requests approval of the motion as stated. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



126

14
2

14
1

140

146

132

129

AlbinioJrPK
Text Box
Exhibit "A"
Item No. F-1













































































































STATE OF HAWAI`I 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

JULY 17 & 18, 2023 

 

TO:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

FROM: Kahana Albinio, Acting Land management Division Administrator 

SUBJECT: Item F-5 – Approval to Issuance of Right of Entry Permit to Akana 
Brother’s Construction LLC., Mapunapuna, Island of O`ahu, TMK Nos. 
(1) 1-1-064:033; and :021. 

 
This submittal will be sent under separate cover. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         ITEM NO. F-5 



Item No. F-6 
 

STATE OF HAWAII 
 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
 

July 17-18, 2023 
 
 

To:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 
From:  Peter “Kahana” Albinio Jr., Acting Administrator 
  Land Management Division 
 
Subject: Approval to Issuance of a General Lease to Waiohuli Hawaiian Homesteaders 

Association, Inc., a 501(c)(3) non-profit, Waiohuli-Keokea, Maui, TMK Nos. (2) 
2-2-028:181 (portion), (2) 2-2-002:014 (portion) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 
 
That the Hawaiian Homes Commission (“HHC) grant its FINAL approval to issue a sixty-five a 
(65)-year general lease to Waiohuli Hawaiian Homesteaders Association, Inc., a 501(c)(3) non-
profit (“WHHA”) to use approximately 150.0 acres of Hawaiian home lands located in Waiohuli, 
island of Maui, further identified by TMK Nos. (2) 2-2-028:181 (portions), (2) 2-2-002:014 
(portion) (see Exhibit “A”), for the Waiohuli Economic Development Opportunities (“WE DO”), 
to include cultural, educational and economic components.   
 
The final approval is subject to the following terms and conditions: 
 
(1) LESSEE:  Waiohuli Hawaiian Homesteaders Association, Inc. with the ability to assign 
the lease to another IRS 501(c)(3) non-profit entity and/or entities to develop and manage water, 
wastewater, and renewable energy components of WE DO, subject to the approval from the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission.   

 
(2) TERM:  Sixty-five (65) year term that shall commence effectively on the date that the 
LEASE document is fully executed by the LESSEE and LESSOR.   
 
(3) LAND AREA:  Approximately 150 acres of Hawaiian Home Lands in Waiohuli, Maui, 
more specifically identified by TMK Nos. (2) 2-2-028:181 (portions), (2) 2-2-002:014 (portion) 
and delineated in Exhibit “A.”  Portions of the leased land area shall revert to the LESSOR once 
the proposed infrastructure development is completed by LESSEE. 

 
(4) PERMITTED USE: LESSEE shall use the premises for economic development 
(including job training and employment opportunities), infrastructure development and 
community public purposes.  Other future uses as envisioned may be permitted via lease 
amendment subject to approval by the Hawaiian Homes Commission.   

 



July 2023 
 
 

2                    Item No. F-6 
 

(5) ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:  LESSEE must complete the required HRS 
Chapter 343, Environment Assessment, and compliance with HRS Chapter 6E, Historic 
Preservation prior to any ground disturbance to the subject leased premises. 
  
(6) BASE RENT:  To be determined at later date based on the final development plan and 
proposed land uses. 

 
(7) LESSEE shall inform LESSOR immediately if it loses its tax-exempt status or if any 
revenue generated from activities on the premises is deemed subject to taxation. 

 
(8) LESSOR shall have the right to terminate the lease, or any portion of it, if LESSEE loses 
its tax-exempt status or is determined to be conducting unrelated trade or business activities on 
the Premises. 

 
(9) As part of LESSOR’s regular review of LESSEE activities, LESSEE shall submit an 
ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT to LESSOR each year on the anniversary date of lease 
commencement.  The ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT shall document the LESSEE’S activities 
of the previous lease year and shall include but not be limited to the following:  

 
a. Pre-construction and construction progress report that provides a description of pre-

construction and construction milestones completed in the respective year of the 
ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT.  LESSEE shall also provide LESSOR with an 
anticipated schedule of completion of pre-construction and construction milestones 
for the following lease year. 

 
b. Upon completion of the construction of the infrastructure and facilities necessary to 

implement LESSEE’s programs, a narrative program report that describes LESSEE’s 
progress on achieving its charitable purpose as articulated in its IRS 1023 Form shall 
be included in the ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT.  LESSEE shall work with 
LESSOR to identify specific reporting requirements and applicable metrics to 
monitor progress towards achieving the LESSEE’s charitable purpose.  Minimum 
reporting requirements shall include number of beneficiaries served and a description 
of how LESSEE has been serving beneficiaries. 

 
c. A financial report that includes standard annual financial statements and the 

LESSEE’s IRS 990 Form for the preceding fiscal year, as well as a budget for the 
following lease year, shall be included in the ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT. 

 
d. Letters from the board of the Waiohuli Hawaiian Homesteaders Association Inc. and 

the boards of other current or future beneficiary membership organizations in the 
Keokea-Waiohuli region indicating whether the LESSEE has satisfactorily provided 
programs and services to its respective organization’s members in the respective year 
of the ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT. Note:  Keokea-Waiohuli Region is defined 
as the region that is specified in the June, 2010 DHHL Waimea Nui Regional Plan 

 
 



July 2023 
 
 

3                    Item No. F-6 
 

(10) No revenue generated by the LESSEE on the Premises shall be used to pay dividends or 
make payments, beyond reasonable salary or contract payments, to any individual or 
organization.  No remuneration shall be paid to any officer or director of “WHHA” or by any 
third party, sublessee or beneficiary membership organizations utilizing any portion of the 
premises. 

 
(11) LESSEE shall at no time own less than 51% of leasehold interest in all facilities located 
on the Premises. 
 
(12) LESSEE may only sublease the premises with the consent of the LESSOR and the 
LESSOR shall have the right to review and approve rent to be charged to the proposed sub-lessee 
and revise the rent charged to the LESSEE based on the rental rate charged to the proposed sub-
lessee. 

 
(13) Any subletting of the premises initiated by the LESSEE shall include a condition in 
which the sublease will be terminated upon the termination of this lease agreement. 

 
(14) LESSOR shall have the right to withdraw portions of the premises from this lease 
agreement if, after an 18-year period, such portions of the premises are not being used by the 
LESSEE for purposes permitted by the lease. 

      
(15) Upon review of LESSEE’S activities, if the LESSOR determines that the LESSEE’S 
activities are not adequately servicing DHHL beneficiaries, LESSOR shall have the right to 
charge LESSEE rent in an amount equal to the fair market rental of the property. Fair market rent 
shall be determined by an independent appraiser selected by the LESSOR.  LESSOR shall also 
reserve the right to place this lease on a “probationary status” if upon review of LESSEE’s 
activities, the LESSOR determines that the LESSEE’S activities are not adequately servicing 
DHHL beneficiaries.  If after one year on “probation”, LESSEE does not demonstrate 
improvement in providing adequate services to DHHL beneficiaries, then LESSOR reserves the 
right to terminate this lease. 

 
Standard General Lease Terms and Conditions 
 
(16) Pursuant to HHCA § 204(a)(2), Lessor shall have the right to withdraw the premises, or 
any portion thereof, from the lease at any time  for the purposes of the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission Act. 
 
(17) LESSEE shall comply with all federal, state and county regulations or requirements 
regarding environmental issues and the safe handling and disposal of toxic or hazardous 
materials.  Upon termination of this lease, LESSEE shall be responsible for environmental clean-
up of any contamination or hazardous materials brought onto the site or caused by LESSEE’S 
activities on the site. 

 
(18) LESSEE shall pay all property taxes that the LESSOR or LESSEE may be assessed 
during the term of this lease.  Failure of the LESSEE to pay all property taxes in a timely manner 
shall trigger the termination of this lease. 

 



July 2023 
 
 

4                    Item No. F-6 
 

(19) LESSEE shall maintain commercial property insurance, general liability insurance, 
worker’s compensation and employers’ liability insurance, and other types of insurance as may 
be required by LESSOR.  LESSOR shall be named as an additional insured on any required 
insurance policy. Types and amounts of required coverage shall be specified in the general lease 
document. 

 
(20) The non-refundable processing ($200.00) and documentation ($75.00) fee of $275.00 
shall be waived. 

 
(21) LESSEE shall comply with all federal, state and county statutes, regulations, codes, and 
ordinances applicable to LESSEE’S use of the premises. 

 
(22) LESSEE agrees to pay for all the costs of establishing utility services to the property and 
pay for all consumption of utilities on the Premises, should LESSEE’S use require such utility 
services. 

 
(23) LESSEE shall obtain LESSOR’S prior approval for any alteration of the topography 
except surface grubbing to remove vegetation.  LESSEE shall be responsible for any flooding or 
erosion caused by LESSEE’S use or alteration of the property. 

 
(24) Prior to vacating the Premises, LESSEE shall remove, at LESSEE'S sole cost, all of the 
LESSEE'S equipment, constructed improvements, trash, goods and materials and restore the area 
to a condition as good as or better than that which existed prior to LESSEE'S use.  LESSEE shall 
also notify LESSOR to do a site inspection when LESSEE has completed removal. 

 
(25) LESSEE shall always keep the Premises neat and clean and shall not allow its trash to 
spread to other surrounding areas. 

 
(26) LESSEE shall be responsible for the security of the Premises and all of LESSEE’S 
personal property thereon. 

 
(27) The lease document is subject to the approval of the State of Hawaii Department of 
Attorney General. 

 
(28) Other terms and conditions deemed prudent by the Hawaiian Homes Commission may be 
added. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
At its regular meeting of December 2022, the Hawaiian Homes Commission granted Preliminary 
Approval to the Issuance of a General Lease to Waiohuli Hawaiian Homesteaders Association, 
Inc., Waiohuli-Keokea, Maui, TMK Nos. (2) 2-2-028:181 (portions), (2) 2-2-002L014 (portion) 
under LMD Agenda Item No. F-1 (See Exhibit “B”.)  Before FINAL approval is brought to the 
HHC for consideration, WHHA must complete the required HRS Chapter 343, Environmental 
Assessment (EA) and compliance with HRS Chapter 6E, Historic Preservation (6E).  At the time 
of HHC approval, the anticipated time frame for the completion of the EA and 6E was 
approximately nine to twelve months. 



July 2023 
 
 

5                    Item No. F-6 
 

 
Also, at its December 2022 meeting, the Hawaiian Homes Commission approved multiple 
homestead grant awards including a grant award of $100,000 to WHHA to complete an 
environmental assessment for its WE DO Initiative 
 
WHHA assembled its team of consultants to complete the EA and 6E based on the conceptual 
plan, land uses and approximate timeline to complete as presented to the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission.  However, after receiving all pricing proposals, the estimated cost to complete the 
EA and 6E is $300,000.  DHHL’s homestead grant award will support $100,000 of the total EA 
and 6E cost however WHHA needs to secure the balance of funding before contracting its 
consultants to proceed. 
 
WHHA firmly believes that it would be best positioned to secure both public and private funding 
to support WE DO if it were able to secure site control through the issuance of a General Lease 
prior to completing the EA and 6E. 
 

• Site control enables WHHA to secure the remaining funding to complete the EA and 6E. 
 

• Site control provides WHHA with immediate opportunities to secure Federal funding and 
native set aside infrastructure and economic development grants that complement the 
purpose and mission of WE DO. 

 
• Site control would also allow for continued discussions on the use of WHHA’s $80M 

Special Purpose Revenue Bond with DHHL and State Department of Budget and 
Finance.  

 
WHHA attempted to meet with DHHL leadership in February and March of 2023 to discuss its 
request and reasons for site control and reference DHHL’s similar program practices but were 
unsuccessful.   

 
In its initial version of the Kulia ‘I ka Nu’u Program, the HHC granted approvals to issue 65-
year general leases to Hawaiian homestead community organizations for economic development 
PRIOR to the organization completing the Chapter 343 requirements.  In these cases, 
completion of Chapter 343 became an initial milestone or deliverable after the general lease was 
issued.  Several of these general leases have resulted in viable community economic 
developments for Waimanalo, Nanakuli, La’iopua and the the Kapolei Community 
Development Corporation (who serves Kapolei Homestead community) organizations. 

 
WHHA was eventually able to meet with new DHHL leadership in May and June of 2023 
enabling this opportunity to present its request to the HHC. 
 
In evaluating the merits of WHHA’s request for issuance of a general lease prior to completing 
an EA and 6E, DHHL is considerate of the consistent and focused achievements of this 
homestead organization that include: 
 



July 2023 
 
 

6                    Item No. F-6 
 

• Since 2005, WHHA continues to be a compliant, tax-exempt non-profit organization 
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code as well as maintaining a 
Certification of Good Standing with the State of Hawaii 

 
• WHHA’s pursuit of economic sustainability began in 2006 with its community-

developed Strategic Plan of 2006 to promote social interaction, education and 
sustainability 
 

• WHHA has secured approximately $4M in non-DHHL funding to complete park 
improvements that provide and direct community benefits.  While constructing park 
improvements, WHHA has nurtured private partnerships with contractors and consultants 
to enable work and mentorship opportunities for its community while building its 
capacity to develop.  All grant funds were fully expended, and all grant reporting 
requirements fulfilled. 
 

• WHHA also received approximately $410,000 of DHHL grant funds for Regional Plan 
Priority Projects pertinent to the regions long-term sustainability.  In December 2022, 
DHHL approved approximately $1.1M in grant funding to WHHA for homestead 
improvements that directly compliment WE DO. 
  

• WHHA received Legislative approval in 2021 for the Issuance of an $80M Special 
Purpose Revenue Bond (Act 198) to assist in the implementation of WE DO. 
 

• WHHA’s WE DO initiative remains consistent with the goals and objectives set forth in 
DHHL’s “Kuli’a I ka Nu’u” program of the Native Hawaiian Development Program Plan 
of 2011-2013 

 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
§171-43.1 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, as amended, titled Lease to eleemosynary 
organizations, authorizes the commission to lease, at nominal consideration or any rental amount 
the commission deems appropriate; by direct negotiation and without recourse to the public 
auction, public lands to an eleemosynary organization which has been certified to be tax exempt 
under sections 501(c)1 or 501 (c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; and on 
such other terms and conditions as the commission may determine.  The lands shall be used by 
such eleemosynary organizations for the purposes which their charter was issued and for which 
they were certified by the Internal Revenue Service. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Land Management Division respectfully requests approval of the motion as stated. 



T
M

K
 (2

)-2
-2

-0
2
8
:1

8
1
 (p

o
rtio

n
) a

n
d

 
(2

)-2
-2

-0
0
2
:0

1
4
 (p

o
rtio

n
) 

A
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

4
7
 A

c
re

s
 

 

AlbinioJrPK
Text Box
Exhibit "A"
Item No. F-6



AlbinioJrPK
Text Box
Exhibit "B"
Item No. F-6





l
e
g
e
n

d
 

W
ai

oh
ul

i_
R

O
E

_b
ou

nd
ar

y 

D
H

H
L 

La
nd

 

St
at

e 
Hi

gh
w

ay
 

TM
K 

(2
}-2

-2
-0

28
:1

8
1 

(p
ort

io
n)

 a
hd

 
(2

)-
2-

2-
00

2:
01

4 
(p

or
tio

n)
 

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
14

7 
Ac

re
s 

"1
 

1
/

 ,_,,,.
 

�'
-
�.

 

..:::-
.....

.. 
1

_
 .

.
..

.
.. 

�\ 
J,r.

� ;
-� 

l
•.1

,:
 

:\
.\

}
: 

·-
-:'i

i ·1
, 

-, 

. -..
 � : 

.
 

I
 

I
 

/ , 

\ 
•·i

T'
.. 

:. .
 . 

. : 
I

-;i
t

' 
I 

,,,,
 

I
 

,,·
_,-.-

'·. 
J

---� 
✓

 

0
.2

5
 

I M
ile

s 
1 

i,
 

l 
/�;

- ._\
 

ITEM NO. F-1
EXHIBIT "A"



WE DO Land Use and Economic Development Plan 

9 

2 WE DO Plan 

2.1 Vision & Goals 

The vision for WE DO is to provide short- and long-term economic opportunities that will foster 
greater self-sufficiency for the people of upcountry Maui through capacity building and jobs 
homegrown at the WE DO Site. WE DO proposes a public-private collaboration to combine 
traditional construction of a master plan development with community-based job opportunities 
derived from development of infrastructure, agricultural cultivation, renewable energy, and water 
source development to create long-term economic sustainability for the Waiohuli community. 

Goals for the project include: 

 Maximize use of the existing Waiohuli Community Center as a space for job training, 
business incubation, and production.  

 Develop a flexible space (indoor and outdoor) for capacity building in the trades. 
 Staff the educational and community facilities with persons trained on site. 
 Create career mentoring and employment opportunities in multiple fields of expertise and 

services associated with a master-planned development. 
 Leverage public resources and services to secure deliberate, sustainable private 

communities and expertise to provide the best, affordable, and timely development 
solutions possible. 

 Propose land uses of WHHA’s master-planned development are consistent and 
complimentary with the DHHL’s Waiohuli Regional Plan and land use designations. 

2.2 WE DO Conceptual Plan (ROE Special Condition #1) 

A preliminary site plan map illustrating land uses for the Site is provided in Figure 3, referred to 
herein as the “WE DO Conceptual Land Use Plan.” The relationships and locations of the planned 
land uses are illustrated on the map with an accompanying table showing estimated acreage within 
the planned development. A description of the conceptual plan elements, proposed land uses, and 
facilities within the development is outlined in Section 0. 

2.2.1 WE DO Proposed Land Uses 

The WE DO conceptual land use plan is Figure 3 within this report. A description of the anticipated 
land uses follows.  

Community Support Training Facilities 

An area of the Site designated to the Community Support Training Facilities is proposed to be 
located near the roadway entrance along both sides of the Lau‘ie Drive extension, comprising a 
total of 6 acres. This component of the master plan will complement the existing Waiohuli 
Community Center abutting these areas to offer community facilities, social services and other 

ITEM NO. F-1 
EXHIBIT "B"



WE DO Land Use and Economic Development Plan 

10 

resources for the broader Waiohuli region. Potential uses could include recreational spaces, 
educational and workforce training facilities, multi-purpose functional spaces, as well as health 
and wellness facilities that feature both traditional Hawaiian healing practices and western medical 
services. Community support training facilities and concepts will be developed to align with the 
desired needs of the community and will be invaluable for the Waiohuli region, given the 
remoteness of the community. 

Infrastructure Training Sites 

Three segments of the Site, totaling approximately 31 acres, will be utilized as the Infrastructure 
Training Sites. This includes areas on the far eastern end of the Site near the Lau‘ie Drive entrance, 
a segment in the central portion of the Site, and an area near the far western end of the Site. These 
areas will primarily serve as a component of the master plan that will support job training related 
to infrastructure construction. Infrastructure development through job training facilities could 
eventually provide the means for future growth within the Site. Within the Infrastructure Training 
Sites in the central portion of the Site, a water well capable of 350 gallons per minute (gpm) 
production is proposed. The proposed yield and pumping capacity were determined based on 
estimated water demand outlined by a groundwater feasibility study conducted in 2022 to evaluate 
potential build out of the Site if community development is considered in the future. The segment 
on the far western end of the Site is being considered to develop wastewater treatment package 
plant scalable to the proposed uses to serve the community support training facilities and will be 
designed with capacity to serve potential future growth on the Site if desired by the Waiohuli 
community. 

Agriculture Development Training Sites 

The Agriculture Development Training Sites will comprise approximately 42 acres, stretching 
along the northern and southern portions of the Site, as well as a central portion makai of the 
existing Waiohuli Community Center. This segment of the Site will primarily provide space for 
educational facilities and job training in the agricultural industry rooted in indigenous knowledge 
and traditional Hawaiian farming. Agriculture cultivated in these areas will also be a resource for 
the community and serve as an opportunity to build on indigenous knowledge cultivating native 
plants using traditional Hawaiian farming techniques. Agricultural development on the Site will 
also offer economic opportunities for commercial development to generate revenue streams for 
the Waiohuli community. 

Renewable Energy Development/Training Sites 

A large 26.4-acre segment along the western boundary of the Site has been planned as an 
opportunity to for training focused on renewable energy development that could also support 
potential future growth on the Site and the neighboring communities.  



LEGEND 

DA (A-1 to A-2) 

D B (B-1 to B-5) 

D C (C-1 to C-2) 

DD 

D 

Community Support Training Facilities 

lnfrastracture Training Sites 

Agricultural Development Training Sites 

Renewable Energy Development/Training Sites 

Natural Drainage Gulch 

TOTAL: 

±6Ac. 

±31 Ac 

±42Ac. 

± 26Ac. 

±45Ac. 

Figure 3 
Conceptual Land Use Plan 

WEDO 

DRAFT: 12/8/2022 



STATE OF HAWAII
STATE PROCUREMENT OFFICE

CERTIFICATE OF VENDOR COMPLIANCE
This document presents the compliance status of the vendor identified below on the issue date with respect to certificates
required from the Hawaii Department of Taxation (DOTAX), the Internal Revenue Service, the Hawaii Department of Labor and
Industrial Relations (DLIR), and the Hawaii Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs (DCCA).

Vendor Name: WAIOHULI HAWAIIAN HOMESTEADERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

DBA/Trade Name: WAIOHULI HAWAIIAN HOMESTEADERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

Issue Date: 12/12/2022

Status: Compliant

Hawaii Tax#: 20556458-01

New Hawaii Tax#:

FEIN/SSN#: XX-XXX1895

UI#: No record

DCCA FILE#: 115966

Status of Compliance for this Vendor on issue date:

Form Department(s) Status
A-6 Hawaii Department of Taxation Compliant

8821 Internal Revenue Service Compliant

COGS Hawaii Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs Compliant

LIR27 Hawaii Department of Labor & Industrial Relations Compliant

Status Legend:

Status Description
Exempt The entity is exempt from this requirement

Compliant The entity is compliant with this requirement or the entity is in agreement with agency and actively working towards
compliance

Pending A status determination has not yet been made

The entity has applied for the certificate but it is awaiting approvalSubmitted

The entity is not in compliance with the requirement and should contact the issuing agency for more informationNot Compliant

ITEM NO. F-1
EXHIBIT "C"



D
C

C
A

 S
ta

te
 o

f H
aw

ai
i

D
ow

nl
oa

de
d 

on
 D

ec
em

be
r 1

2,
 2

02
2.

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
el

ow
 is

 n
ot

 a
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 g

oo
d 

st
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t c
on

st
itu

te
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
by

 th
e 

S
ta

te
.

W
eb

si
te

 U
R

L:
 h

ttp
://

hb
e.

eh
aw

ai
i.g

ov
/d

oc
um

en
ts

B
us

in
es

s 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

M
A

S
TE

R
 N

A
M

E
W

A
IO

H
U

LI
 H

A
W

A
IIA

N
 H

O
M

E
S

TE
A

D
E

R
S

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
, I

N
C

.
B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 T
Y

P
E

D
om

es
tic

 N
on

pr
of

it 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n
FI

LE
 N

U
M

B
E

R
11

59
66

 D
2

S
TA

TU
S

A
ct

iv
e

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
TO

 P
R

O
TE

C
T 

A
N

D
 F

U
R

TH
E

R
 T

H
E

 N
A

TI
V

E
 H

A
W

A
IIA

N
 C

U
LT

U
R

A
L 

H
E

R
IT

A
G

E
TH

R
O

U
G

H
 E

D
U

C
A

TI
O

N
; A

N
D

 T
O

 F
U

R
TH

E
R

 T
H

E
 Q

U
A

LI
TY

 O
F 

LI
FE

 O
F

D
IS

A
D

V
A

N
TA

G
E

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E

 W
A

IO
H

U
LI

 H
A

W
A

IIA
N

 H
O

M
E

S
TE

A
D

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

.
O

R
G

A
N

IZ
E

D
 IN

H
aw

ai
i U

N
IT

E
D

 S
TA

TE
S

IN
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TI
O

N
D

A
TE

Ju
l 6

, 1
99

9

M
A

IL
IN

G
 A

D
D

R
E

S
S

P
 O

 B
O

X
 6

98
K

U
LA

, H
aw

ai
i 9

67
90

-0
69

8
U

N
IT

E
D

 S
TA

TE
S

TE
R

M
P

E
R

A
G

E
N

T 
N

A
M

E
E

R
N

E
TT

E
 K

A
E

A
-P

R
O

N
E

S
A

G
E

N
T 

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
P

 O
 B

O
X

 6
98

K
U

LA
, H

aw
ai

i 9
67

90
U

N
IT

E
D

 S
TA

TE
S

A
nn

ua
l F

ili
ng

s

FI
LI

N
G

 Y
E

A
R

D
A

TE
 R

E
C

E
IV

E
D

S
TA

TU
S

20
22

O
ct

 3
, 2

02
2

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
20

21
A

ug
 8

, 2
02

1
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

20
20

O
ct

 5
, 2

02
0

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
20

19
S

ep
 1

8,
 2

01
9

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
20

18
O

ct
 1

6,
 2

01
8

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
20

17
Ju

l 3
1,

 2
01

7
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

20
16

O
ct

 4
, 2

01
6

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
20

15
A

ug
 6

, 2
01

5
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

20
14

S
ep

 2
5,

 2
01

4
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

20
13

Ju
l 8

, 2
01

3
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

20
12

Ju
l 6

, 2
01

2
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

20
11

S
ep

 6
, 2

01
1

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
20

10
S

ep
 2

7,
 2

01
0

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
20

09
A

ug
 1

1,
 2

00
9

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
20

08
Ju

l 1
4,

 2
00

8
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

20
07

Ju
l 2

, 2
00

7
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

20
06

A
pr

 5
, 2

00
7

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
20

05
Ja

n 
30

, 2
00

6
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

20
04

O
ct

 2
0,

 2
00

4
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

20
03

S
ep

 5
, 2

00
3

P
ro

ce
ss

ed

20
02

N
ot

 R
eq

ui
re

d
20

01
Ju

n 
17

, 2
00

2
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

20
00

Ju
l 2

2,
 2

00
2

P
ro

ce
ss

ed
19

99
S

ep
 5

, 2
00

2
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

O
ffi

ce
rs

N
A

M
E

O
FF

IC
E

D
A

TE
A

R
TA

TE
S

,P
E

R
R

Y
P

Ju
l 1

, 2
01

5
A

LO
,K

A
W

IK
A

V
Ju

l 1
, 2

01
7

B
R

O
W

N
,J

O
A

D
D

IE
S

Ju
l 1

, 2
01

7
K

A
E

A
-P

R
O

N
E

S
,E

R
N

E
TT

E
T

Ju
l 1

, 2
01

5
A

R
U

D
A

,S
TE

V
E

N
D

Ju
l 1

, 2
01

7
FO

S
TE

R
,S

A
'A

D
Ju

l 1
, 2

01
7

Y
A

P
,E

M
M

A
D

Ju
l 1

, 2
01

7
G

R
E

IG
, W

IL
LI

A
M

D
Ju

l 1
, 2

01
9

A
R

TA
TE

S
, A

LA
N

I
D

Ju
l 1

, 2
01

9
K

U
A

IL
A

N
I, 

K
E

IT
H

D
Ju

l 1
, 2

01
9

N
A

K
O

O
K

A
,D

A
N

E
TT

E
D

Ju
l 1

, 2
01

5
S

A
FF

E
R

Y
,C

A
R

L
D

Ju
l 1

, 2
01

5



HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

JULY 17 & 18, 2023 

G-ITEMS

PLANNING OFFICE 



   
 

 

- 1 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

 

STATE OF HAWAI‛I 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

 

July 17-18, 2023 

 

 

To:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

 

Thru:  Andrew H. Choy, Planning Program Manager 

 

From:  Malia M. Cox, NAHASDA Compliance Specialist 

 

Subject: Re-use of the Existing Building (former military 

temporary housing) at 91-1071 Yorktown Street, 

Kalaeloa, Moku of ʻEwa, Ahupuaʻa of Honouliuli, island 

of Oʻahu TMK (1) 9-1-013:024 (por) Designated 

“Industrial” as an Acceptable Use Pursuant to the DHHL 

General Plan Update 2022 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

Approve the Re-use of the Existing Building (former 

military temporary housing) at 91-1071 Yorktown Street, 

Kalaeloa, Moku of ʻEwa, Ahupuaʻa of Honouliuli, island of Oʻahu 

TMK (1) 9-1-013:024 (por) Designated “Industrial” as an 

Acceptable Use Pursuant to the DHHL General Plan Update 2022 

 

DISCUSSION 

One of the program activities in the Annual Housing Plan 

prepared in accordance with NAHASDA requirements is to assist 

beneficiaries transitioning out of homelessness. This is a group 

of beneficiaries that DHHL has not been able to assist in the 

past. DHHL is rehabilitating the existing building (see Figure 

1- Project Location and Figure 2-View of Existing Facility) in 

Kalaeloa (formerly utilized as temporary housing by the Navy) 

into 18 to 20 studio units for use as transitional housing and 

social service support facilities for homeless native Hawaiian 

applicants. The building in its current condition does not meet 

existing standards for health and safety for a residential 

dwelling. While the proposal will support houseless applicants 

on the waiting list in securing housing, the facilities proposed 

are designed to assist in the transition to secure long-term 

housing.  Applicants housed in the facility will remain on the 

applicant list based on their current position.  



   
 

 

- 2 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

 
Figure 1- Project Location 



   
 

 

- 3 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

 
Figure 2- View of Existing Facility 

 

A beneficiary informational meeting (held as virtual/in-

person hybrid meeting) was held in August 2022 to discuss and 

evaluate the appropriate and compatible land use designation for 

the proposed re-use of the existing building for transitional 

housing for homeless beneficiaries.   

 

Subsequent to this initial beneficiary meeting, the General 

Plan was updated. Based upon the General Plan update, a change in 

land-use was no longer required. The proposed re-use of the 

existing low-rise building for rental apartment is an acceptable 

use with commission approval within the current land use 

designation, “Industrial” as described in the updated General 

Plan. 

 

DHHL Planning Process 

DHHL developed a three-tiered planning system to guide 

planning of its land holdings and policies for resource 

management, and for the benefit of current and future 

beneficiaries. The planning system includes an over-arching 

General Plan, followed by Strategic Program Plans and Island 

Plans, in the second tier and Regional and Development Plans in 

the third tier. 

 

DHHL General Plan, (adopted 2002, update approved 2022) 

The General Plan (GP) (Tier 1 of the Planning System) is a 

Statewide plan developed with a long-term perspective (20 years) 

that identifies statewide goals and policies to guide land 

management and programs. The land use framework is intended to 

bring DHHL plans into greater alignment through providing 

consistent land use designations, criteria, and dispositions to 



   
 

 

- 4 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

be utilized across all DHHL lands. The GP focuses on seven 

priority areas, Land Use and Water Resources; Infrastructure; 

Housing; Food Production; Healthy Communities; Natural and 

Cultural Resource Management; and Revenue Generation and 

Cultural Resource Management. The GP has 16 land use 

designations, five specifically for homesteading and 11 non-

homesteading uses.  Several of the non-homesteading land use 

designations allow for higher density residential use with 

commission approval. The project is located within an area 

designated “industrial.”  The “industrial” land use designation 

identifies “low-rise rental apartment” as an acceptable 

residential type with commission approval. See Table 1, Master 

Land use Table (General Plan Update 2022). 

 

Table 1- Master Use Table 

 



   
 

 

- 5 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

 
 

Oʻahu Island Plan, (adopted 2014) 

The island plans (Tier 2 of the Planning System) were 

developed to have a long-term perspective (around 20 years with 

an update every 10 years) and accomplish the following: 

 

• Implement comprehensive General Plan goals and objectives 

• Establish land use designations to encourage orderly social, 

physical, and economic development.  

• Identify priority areas for homestead development. 

 

The Hawaiian Homes Commission approved the Oʻahu Island 

Plan in 2014. DHHL lands holdings on Oʻahu Island are located 

within four moku on Oʻahu, Waiʻanae, ʻEwa, Kona and 

Koʻolaupoko as shown in Figure 3- DHHL Lands on Oʻahu-

Boundary comparison between Moku and City’s 

Development/Sustainable Communities. The area of proposed 

revision to the land use designation is located within the 

ʻEwa Moku. 



   
 

 

- 6 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

 

Figure 3- 2014 Oʻahu Island Plan- DHHL Lands on Oʻahu-Boundary 

comparison between Moku and City’s Development/Sustainable 

Communities  

 

As described in the OIP, land holdings in the ʻEwa Moku are 

located within two ahupuaʻa, Waiawa and Honouliuli, with 

Honouliuli further subdivided into Kapolei and Kalaeloa 

tracts. The proposed project is located within the Kalaeloa 

tract.  All lands within Kalaeloa were designated, Industrial 

in the OIP. See Figure 4 Current Land Use Designations- 

Kapolei. 

 

 



   
 

 

- 7 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

Figure 4- Current Land Use Designations- Kapolei 

 

 

Oʻahu Island Regional Plans 

Regional Plans are part of the third tier of DHHL’s 

planning system. Regional plans have a short-term focus at 

the community/regional level.  These plans apply the goals, 

policies and land use designations to specific geographic 

regions that have been at least partially developed. It is a 

mechanism for DHHL to affect development rather than reacting 

to actions by other organizations. DHHL has worked with local 

beneficiaries to develop five regional plans. The Kapolei 

Regional Plan updated 2022 included DHHL’s Kalaeloa lands.  

 

Native Hawaiian Housing Plan 

 The Native Hawaiian Housing Plan/ Annual Performance 

Report (NHHP/APR) is submitted annually to US Department of 

Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and describes DHHL’s 



   
 

 

- 8 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

approved affordable housing activities utilizing Native 

Hawaiian Housing Block Grant (NHHBG) funds. The current 

NHHP/APR identifies homeless households as one the Housing 

Needs to be targeted.  It states, “Homelessness among Native 

Hawaiians is prevalent.  Although not typically chronically 

homeless, they are overrepresented in Hawaii’s homeless 

population.  Homeless Native Hawaiians often have jobs but 

cannot afford housing, so they double up (hidden homeless) or 

live in tents, shelters, cars, or garages.” This project once 

developed will provide transitional housing for 18 beneficiaries 

on the waitlist that are homeless or houseless. 

 

Project Description 

 The proposed work includes the renovation of an existing 

approximately 11,0000 square-foot low-rise residential building 

and associated infrastructure to serve homeless families within 

the same structure and footprint. The building in its present 

condition does not meet current health and safety standards for 

residential occupancy. The project will include the renovation 

of 18 studio units to be used for transitional housing homeless 

native Hawaiian beneficiaries currently on the Department of 

Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL) Wait List, renovation of 1 unit 

dedicated as a communal area and renovation of 1 unit dedicated 

as an office/service support center. In addition to the 

rehabilitation of the existing building, the project will 

include repair/rehabilitation of the existing parking lot, 

hazard abatement, and removal of above ground storage tank and 

ancillary equipment, compliance with recommendations from US 

Fish and Wildlife, compliance with ADA, City and County 

permitting, and HCDA approvals. The purpose of the proposed 

project is to provide people of native Hawaiian ancestry with 

safe and secure housing.  

 

Actions taken in Support of Project 

March 2021 

Exemption from Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapter 343 based on 

exemption types, 2, 3, and 6 as enumerated in HAR 11.200.1  

 

March 2021 

Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 

 

February-July 2021 

Consultation with select Native Hawaiian Organizations 

identified on the US Department of Interior NHO list and stake 

holders recommended by the State Historic Preservation Officer 

(SHPO) 



   
 

 

- 9 – 

ITEM NO. G-1 

 

October 2021 

SHPO Concurrence with “no historic properties affected” 

determination for archaeological resources 

 

May 2022 

Reconnaissance Level Survey of building located at 91-1071 

Yorktown Street 

 

August 2022 

Submission of Informational Packet to Hawaiian Homes Commission 

Beneficiary Meeting - Project Information and Evaluation of 

Existing Land Use Designation Compatibility  

 

October 2022 

SHPO Concurrence with “no historic properties affected” 

determination for architectural resources 

Completion of Environmental Record Review, HUD authorization of 

use of NAHASDA funds in the rehabilitation of the building in 

support of transitional housing 

 

November 2022 

General Plan Update Approved by HHC 

  

December 2022 

Publication of Request for Proposals to rehabilitate the 

building at 91-1071 Yorktown. 

 

April 2023 

Selection of proposal submitted by R&D Contractors, LLC 

 

June 2023 

Rehabilitation contract executed 

Hazard mitigation assessment completed 

 

Actions Pending Completion 

3rd-4th Quarter 2023 

Design and permitting of building rehabilitation  

Hazard Abatement 

 

2024 

Projected start of construction 

Beneficiary Meeting for programming relating to transitional 

housing 

 

2025 

Projected construction completion 



1 HHC ITEM G-2 
 

STATE OF HAWAII 
 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
 

July 17 - 18, 2023 
 

To:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 
From: Andrew Choy, Planning Program Manager 
 
Subject: For Information Only - Water Policy Plan 

Implementation Program Report for FY 2023 and Draft 
Water Policy Plan Implementation Program for FY 2024 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 
 
For Information Only  
 
DISCUSSION 
 

This submittal provides (1) a report on progress made 
towards the Commission’s water policy objectives under the FY 
2023 Water Policy Plan (“WPP”) Implementation Program (“IP”), 
and (2) a Proposed WPP-IP for FY 2024.  

 
I. Purpose 

 
The Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) WPP was passed by the 

HHC in 2014. It was adopted by the HHC after three years of 
research and two rounds of beneficiary meetings across Hawai`i. 
It serves as the comprehensive guiding document for water 
related decisions by the HHC and the DHHL.   Based on our 
research, it was the first water policy of the Trust since 
passage of the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act (HHCA) in 1921.    
The Policy Plan as adopted is attached here as Exhibit C, and is 
also available at http://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2013/09/HHC-Water-Policy-Plan-140722.pdf 
 

The WPP section on “Delegation of Authorities, Reporting, and 
Consultation” specifies that the Chairman shall annually seek 
approval from the HHC for a proposed IP in conjunction with the 
Department’s budget request.  In addition, the Chairman shall 
annually report on progress on execution of the previous year’s 
approved IP. This submittal is in compliance with that 
provision. 
  



2 HHC ITEM G-2 
 

 
II. Background 
 
At its July 22, 2014 meeting, the Commission adopted the 

WPP.  The purpose of the WPP is to provide strategic, proactive, 
comprehensive, and consistent guidance to the Commission, 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (“Department”) on water 
related issues, actions, and decisions.  

 
The Planning Office (“PO”) is the lead division for 

implementation of the WPP-IP. However, as responsibilities for 
water are currently held throughout the department, 
implementation requires coordination across the agency. 

 
Because of the timing of the approval of the WPP in July 

2014, the FY 2016 WPP IP was the first submitted prior to the 
beginning of the fiscal year and the first evaluated on a full-
year basis.  This submittal contains the eighth full year of 
evaluation and the ninth WPP IP submitted for consideration by 
the HHC.  

 
During the policy development process, beneficiaries, the 

HHC, and DHHL staff identified twenty-three key goals that would 
advance DHHL water rights and development to fulfill the HHCA. 
The second round of beneficiary consultation including a process 
for ranking of these goals, and the WPP identified four of these 
as Priority Goals as the focus of implementation: 

 
1. Affirmatively communicate with beneficiaries regarding 

water decisions, performance, and water rights on a 
regional and annual basis.  

2. Aggressively, proactively, consistently and comprehensively 
advocate for the kuleana of the beneficiaries, the DHHL, 
and the HHC to water before all relevant agencies and 
entities.  

3. Develop and manage a Water Assets Inventory (WAI).  
4. Support watershed protection and restoration on DHHL lands 

and source areas for DHHL water.  
 

III. Summary of Performance on the FY 2023 WPP-IP  
 

The FY 2023 WPP IP, as in previous years, has focused on 
the four priority goals of the WPP IP, with other goals pursued 
at the direction of the HHC and Chairman as conditions warrant 
and resources allow. Importantly, the consistent investment in 
advocacy (Goal 2) has continued to realize critical outcomes, 



3 HHC ITEM G-2 
 

including the awarding of water reservations to DHHL for future 
use in the years and decades to come. 

 
The most significant accomplishments for the FY have been: 

 
1) Continued collaboration with the beneficiaries, the 

Kaua'i Island Utility Cooperative and other signatories 
to the Waimea River Watershed Agreement to make progress 
and bring water and infrastructure to our lands at Pu`u 
`Ōpae, including conversion of the KIUC right of entry 
(ROE) into a general lease; 
 

2) Work with the Honolulu Board of Water Supply (BWS) to a) 
ensure that any water moratorium necessary due to the 
Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage facility contamination would 
not result in delays in issuing water meters for DHHL 
projects, and b) support of the BWS pending petition to 
designate Wai`anae as a Ground Water Management Area; 
 

3) Led by the Homestead Services Division working with the 
PO, DHHL began to issue new water meters on Molokai in 
late 2022 for the first time in years.  This occurred 
following the September 2022 passage by the HHC of the 
Processes for the Allocation of Water Credits and Water 
Meters on Water Systems Serving DHHL Lands and the 
successful July 2022 securing of an increased Water Use 
Permit, the culmination of a three decade effort. 
 

4) Following beneficiary consultation and HHC acceptance, 
filed groundwater reservation requests for reservation 
by rule on Molokai to the Commission on Water Resource 
Management; 

 
5) Secured authorization from the HHC to enter into a Right 

of Entry with the County of Maui to secure treated water 
for Honokowai nonpotable uses; 

 
6) Supported efforts by the Maui County Council to place on 

the November 2022 ballot a proposal to create an East 
Maui Regional Water Authorities with “one member who is 
a representative of the Hawaiian Homes Commission, and 
is recommended by the Department of Hawaiian Home 
Lands.”  The charter amendment was passed. 
 

7) Continued significant progress on securing site control 
for two new well sites in North Kona needed for buildout 
of DHHL lands at Kealakehe (La`i`Ōpua) and other tracts 



4 HHC ITEM G-2 
 

including HHC authorization to enter into an agreement 
on the same; and 

 
8) In collaboration with the Ka Huli Ao Center for 

Excellence in Native Hawaiian Law at the William S 
Richardson School of Law, prepared for statewide 
beneficiary training on how to prepare for, apply for, 
and assume leadership positions in county and state 
commissions with water kuleana; the training has been 
oversubscribed and commences the last week in June and 
lasts for four weeks (one session per week) to be 
repeated in the fall to meet beneficiary demand. 

 
2023 Challenges and Opportunities 

 
While opportunistic progress was made, not all objectives 

under each Goal were achieved this fiscal year.  The loss of the 
Department Water Resource Management Specialist near the 
beginning of the second quarter of FY 2020 has yet to be 
rectified due to the ongoing state hiring freeze and subsequent 
recruitment challenges.   

 
Certain proposals contained in the proposed 2023 WPP IP 

were not funded by the Commission or their funding was reduced. 
 

In addition, as in past years, developments in ongoing 
water disputes had critical implications for the Department’s 
interests in water. Ongoing conflicts regarding ground and 
surface and ground water related to DHHL water needs in East 
Maui, Honokōwai Maui, Wailua, Kaua‘i, and Ka`ū required focused 
staff and consultant efforts.  Consistent implementation of the 
WPP since 2014 has allowed staff and consultants to be better 
prepared to work ensure the rights of the beneficiaries, 
Hawaiian Homes Commission, and the DHHL were protected and 
enhanced. 

 
Comparison of goals versus achievements is presented in 

Exhibit A. 
 

IV. Proposed FY 2024 WPP-IP. 
 
The overall WPP IP for 2024 appears as Exhibit B; two items 

seek allocations.  The proposed WPP-IP FY2023 budget is 
$380,000.  The investments proposed for HHC funding are expected 
to continue the policy outcomes that have resulted from the 
passage and implantation of the WPP. 

 



5 HHC ITEM G-2 
 

  The following describes general areas of expenditures 
under subparts of WPP-IP FY 2024 goals, which are detailed as 
Exhibit B. 

 
Goal 1.b. $200,000 Continue to train beneficiaries 

regarding DHHL water rights, including 
through in person and remote learning and 
networking among beneficiary communities. 

 
All Goals $180,000 Contractor to assist DHHL with WPP 

IP implementation, water initiatives and 
advocacy 

 
Total:   $380,000 
 

Other major foci in FY 2024 will be continued work to 
assert water rights related to other HRS 171-58 water lease 
renewals across Hawai`i. This will involve work with the 
Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR) to transform 
water revocable permits into long term leases.  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 
 

None; for information only.   

 



 1 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 

Exhibit A. Summary of Performance on the FY 2023 WPP-IP 
 

The FY 2023 WPP IP, as in previous years, has focused 
on the four priority goals of the WPP IP, with other goals 
pursued at the direction of the HHC and Chairman as 
conditions warrant and resources allow. Importantly, the 
consistent investment in advocacy (Goal 2) has continued to 
realize critical outcomes, including the awarding of water 
reservations to DHHL for future use in the years and 
decades to come. 

 
The most significant accomplishments for the FY have been: 

 
1) Continued collaboration with the beneficiaries, the 

Kaua'i Island Utility Cooperative and other 
signatories to the Waimea River Watershed Agreement 
to make progress and bring water and infrastructure 
to our lands at Pu`u `Ōpae, including conversion of 
the KIUC right of entry (ROE) into a general lease; 
 

2) Work with the Honolulu Board of Water Supply (BWS) 
to a) ensure that any water moratorium necessary 
due to the Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage facility 
contamination would not result in delays in issuing 
water meters for DHHL projects, and b) support of 
the BWS pending petition to designate Wai`anae as a 
Ground Water Management Area; 
 

3) Led by the Homestead Services Division working with 
the PO, DHHL began to issue new water meters on 
Molokai in late 2022 for the first time in years.  
This occurred following the September 2022 passage 
by the HHC of the Processes for the Allocation of 
Water Credits and Water Meters on Water Systems 
Serving DHHL Lands and the successful July 2022 
securing of an increased Water Use Permit, the 
culmination of a three decade effort. 
 

4) Following beneficiary consultation and HHC 
acceptance, filed groundwater reservation requests 
for reservation by rule on Molokai to the 
Commission on Water Resource Management; 

 
5) Secured authorization from the HHC to enter into a 

Right of Entry with the County of Maui to secure 
treated water for Honokowai nonpotable uses; 

 



 2 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 

6) Supported efforts by the Maui County Council to 
place on the November 2022 ballot a proposal to 
create an East Maui Regional Water Authorities with 
“one member who is a representative of the Hawaiian 
Homes Commission, and is recommended by the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands.”  The charter 
amendment was passed. 
 

7) Continued significant progress on securing site 
control for two new well sites in North Kona needed 
for buildout of DHHL lands at Kealakehe (La`i`Ōpua) 
and other tracts including HHC authorization to 
enter into an agreement on the same; and 

 
8) In collaboration with the Ka Huli Ao Center for 

Excellence in Native Hawaiian Law at the William S 
Richardson School of Law, prepared for statewide 
beneficiary training on how to prepare for, apply 
for, and assume leadership positions in county and 
state commissions with water kuleana; the training 
has been oversubscribed and commences the last week 
in June and lasts for four weeks (one session per 
week), to be repeated in the fall to meet 
beneficiary demand. 

 
2023 Challenges and Opportunities 

 
While opportunistic progress was made, not all 

objectives under each Goal were achieved this fiscal year.  
The loss of the Department Water Resource Management 
Specialist near the beginning of the second quarter of FY 
2020 has yet to be rectified due to the ongoing state 
hiring freeze and subsequent recruitment challenges.   

 
Certain proposals contained in the proposed 2023 WPP 

IP were not funded by the Commission or their funding was 
reduced. In addition, as in past years, developments in 
ongoing water disputes had critical implications for the 
Department’s interests in water. Ongoing conflicts 
regarding ground and surface and ground water related to 
DHHL water needs in East Maui, Honokōwai Maui, Wailua, 
Kaua‘i, and Ka`ū required focused staff and consultant 
efforts.  Consistent implementation of the WPP since 2014 
has allowed staff and consultants to be better prepared to 
work ensure the rights of the beneficiaries, Hawaiian Homes 
Commission, and the DHHL were protected and enhanced.



 3 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 

Table I. Summary of FY 2023 WPP IP Performance 
 

Red shading and bold underlined text indicate implementation action goal was not met 
Orange shading and italicized text indicates some progress was made 
Green shading and normal text indicate the action goal was met. 

 

Goal 1. Affirmatively communicate with beneficiaries regarding water decisions, 
performance, and water rights on a regional and annual basis. 
 
# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 

resource 
estimate 

Expenses 

1.
a. 

Annually and regionally present on DHHL water 
projects and issues in conjunction with HHC 
meetings. 

Staff time:  80 
hr. 
Consultant 
time: 80 hr. 

Within PO 
budget and 
consultant 
contracts 

1.
b. 

Develop and execute ten targeted trainings on water 
rights for beneficiaries over two years in 
collaboration with the William S. Richardson School 
of Law’s Ka Huli Ao program and others as available 
and appropriate.  

Staff time:  
100 hr. 
Consultant 
time:  300 hr.  

$200,000 
contract  

 Subtotal Staff: 180 hr. 
 
Consultant: 380 
hr. 

$200,000 

  



 4 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 

Goal 2.  Aggressively, proactively, consistently and comprehensively advocate for the 
kuleana of the beneficiaries, the DHHL, and the HHC to water before all relevant agencies 
and entities. 
 
# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 

resource 
estimate 

Expenses 

2.
a. 

Continue advocating for funds due to the NHRF. Staff time:  
100 hr. 
Consultant 
time: 200 hr. 

Within PO 
budget and 
consultant 
contracts 

2.
b. 

Secure water reservations pursuant to Hawai‘i 
Revised Statutes, Chapter 174C & Section 171-58 

 Seek additional water reservations for  
surface and ground water across the islands as 
appropriate. 

 Continue pursuit of implementation of 
reservations. 

 Assert reservation needs in conjunction with 
water licensing under HRS 171-58 

Staff time:  
200 hr. 
Consultant 
time: 400 hr. 

$180,000 
contract for 
WPP IP for all 
line items 

2.
c. 

Continue efforts to ensure regulatory compliance  
 Continue regular comments on BLNR, CWRM 

actions, and other agency actions that could 
affect DHHL water rights; 

 Continue to coordinate with OHA staff on 
identification and tracking of water issues; 

 Develop a method for utilizing WAI information 
in comment letters; 

Staff time:  
100 hr. 
Consultant 
time: 100 hr. 

$180,000 
contract for 
WPP IP for all 
line items 



 5 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 

# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 
resource 
estimate 

Expenses 

2.
d. 

Water Planning  
i. Participate in and comment on all updates to 

the Hawai`i Water Plan and County Plans that 
will affect DHHL and beneficiary water kuleana 

ii. Coordinate DHHL agricultural water systems 
development planning with State and county 
community plans. 

iii. Coordinate with DHHL staff working on 
subsistence agricultural plans. 

Staff time:   
35 hr. 
Consultant 
time:  60 hr. 

$180,000 
contract for 
WPP IP for all 
line items 

2.
e. 

Comment on water rights-related legislative and 
other agency rulemaking actions as necessary and 
directed. 

Staff time:   
20 hr. 
Consultant 
time:  40 hr. 

$180,000 
contract for 
WPP IP for all 
line items 

2.
f. 

Work with authorized outside counsel as applicable 
to assert DHHL water rights through legal 
mechanisms; Use of expert witnesses if attempts to 
mediate ongoing disputes are unsuccessful in 
administrative proceedings 

Staff time:   
30 hr. 
Consultant 
time:  225 hr.  

Within PO 
budget and 
consultant 
contracts 

 Subtotal Staff: 485 hr. 
 
Consultants: 
1,025 hr. 

$180,000 

 
  



 6 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 

Goal 3.  Develop and manage a Water Assets Inventory (WAI). 
 
# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 

resource 
estimate 

Expenses 

3. 
a. 

(Former 3.b.) Integrate Cultural Water Assets 
Inventory into DHHL decision-making 
 

Goal 3.c. Staff 
time:  
40 hr. 
Goal 3.c. 
Consultant 
time: 40 hr. 

Within PO 
budget and 
consultant 
contracts 

 Subtotal Staff: 40 
Consultant: 40 

Obligated funds 

 
  



 7 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 

Goal 4.  Support watershed protection and restoration on DHHL lands and source areas for 
DHHL water. 
 
# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 

resource 
estimate 

Expenses 

4. 
a. 

Implementation of any conditions placed on a 
granted WUPA for the Kauluwai 1&2 wells by CWRM 

Unknown, 
dependent on 
CWRM action 

None. Continued 
planning 
efforts and 
identification 
of outside 
funding sources 
and partners 

 

 

 
  



 8 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 

5. Other WPP Goals: Implementation of additional WPP goals based on the availability of 
resources 
 
# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 

resource 
estimate 

Expenses 

5. 
a. 

Staff and organize the DHHL consistent with 
importance of water to the trust. 
i. Train and update them on issues addressed DHHL 

water team and positions taken on those issues. 

5.a. Staff 
time: 20 hr. 
5.a. Consultant 
time: 40 hr. 

Within PO 
budget  

5. 
b. 

Water Source Development:  Planning, environmental 
compliance and related matters for water source 
development in homestead communities statewide 

5.b. Staff 
time: 160 hr. 
5.b. Consultant 
time: 160 hr. 
(not including 
third parties) 

$350,000 in 
budget 
request*** 

5. 
c. 

Ho`olehua Water System Long-term asset management, 
operations, and management plan. 

5.c. Staff 
time: 160 hr. 
 

$400,000 
contract in 
budget 
request*** 

5.
d. 

Water Systems Rate Study (Pu`ukapu) 5.d. Staff 
time: 80 hr. 

$200,000 in 
budget 
request*** 

5.
e. 

DHHL Water System Customer Education Services 5.e. Consultant 
time TBD 

$100,000 in 
budget 
request*** 

 Subtotal Staff: 500 
Consultant: 590 

$100,000 

 
***  Funding for Item 5.b. was reduced to $100,000; funding for items 5.c-e were 
eliminated. 



 9 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 

 
 
 
Additional Significant WPP Related activities not covered by a particular IP goal 

 Preparation and final approval of Processes for the Allocation of Water Credits and 
Water Meters on Water Systems Serving DHHL Lands 



 10 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 

Additional Information 
 

In addition to the information presented above and in 
the main HHC submittal, regional updates on Water Issues 
and Projects have been provided during the year to the HHC. 
 



PROPOSED WPP IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM AND BUDGET FOR FY 2024 

 1 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit B 

I. Proposed FY 2024 WPP-IP. 
 
The proposed WPP-IP FY2024 budget is $380,000.  The investments proposed for HHC 

funding are expected to continue the policy outcomes that have resulted from the passage 
and implantation of the WPP. 

 
  The following describes general areas of expenditures under subparts of WPP-IP FY 

2024 goals, which are detailed as Exhibit B. 
 

Goal 1.b. $200,000 Continue to train beneficiaries regarding DHHL water rights, 
including through in person and remote learning and networking among 
beneficiary communities. 

 
All Goals $180,000 Contractor to assist DHHL with WPP IP implementation, water 

initiatives and advocacy 
 
Total:   $380,000 
 

Other major foci in FY 2024 will be continued work to assert water rights related to 
other HRS 171-58 water lease renewals across Hawai`i. This will involve work with the 
Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR) to transform water revocable permits into 
long term leases.  

 
  
Estimates of staff and consultant time are included below.   Except where noted, the 
target date for completion is June 30, 2024.  The Planning Office (“PO”) is the lead 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (“DHHL”) division for the WPP-IP.  Resources for 
certain implementation actions are not specified when they are conducted by other 
divisions or included in other portions of the PO budget. 

  



PROPOSED WPP IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM AND BUDGET FOR FY 2024 

 2 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit B 

Goal 1. Affirmatively communicate with beneficiaries regarding water decisions, 
performance, and water rights on a regional and annual basis. 
 
# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 

resource 
estimate 

Estimated 
expenses 

1.
a. 

Annually and regionally present on DHHL water 
projects and issues in conjunction with HHC 
meetings. 

Staff time:  80 
hr. 
Consultant 
time: 80 hr. 

$180,000 in 
consultant 
contract for 
all WPP IP 
Goals 

1.
b. 

In collaboration with the Ka Huli Ao Center for 
Excellence in Native Hawaiian Law at the William S 
Richardson School of Law, prepared for statewide 
beneficiary training on how to prepare for, apply 
for, and assume leadership positions in county and 
state commissions with water kuleana 

Staff time:  
100 hr. 
Consultant 
time:  300 hr.  

$200,000 in  
intergovernment
al agreements 

 Subtotal Staff: 180 hr. 
 
Consultant: 380 
hr. 

$380,000 

  



PROPOSED WPP IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM AND BUDGET FOR FY 2024 

 3 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit B 

Goal 2.  Aggressively, proactively, consistently and comprehensively advocate for the 
kuleana of the beneficiaries, the DHHL, and the HHC to water before all relevant agencies 
and entities. 
 
# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 

resource 
estimate 

Estimated 
expenses 

2.
a. 

Continue advocating for funds due to the NHRF. Staff time:  
100 hr. 
Consultant 
time: 200 hr. 

See item 1.a. 

2.
b. 

Secure water reservations pursuant to Hawai‘i 
Revised Statutes, Chapter 174C & Section 171-58 
i. Seek additional water reservations for  

surface and ground water across the islands as 
appropriate. 

ii. Continue pursuit of implementation of 
reservations. 

iii. Assert reservation needs in conjunction with 
water licensing under HRS 171-58 

Staff time:  
200 hr. 
Consultant 
time: 400 hr. 

See item 1.a. 

2.
c. 

Continue efforts to ensure regulatory compliance  
i. Continue regular comments on BLNR, CWRM 

actions, and other agency actions that could 
affect DHHL water rights; 

ii. Continue to coordinate with OHA staff on 
identification and tracking of water issues; 

iii. Develop a method for utilizing WAI information 
in comment letters; 

Staff time:  
100 hr. 
Consultant 
time: 100 hr. 

See item 1.a. 



PROPOSED WPP IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM AND BUDGET FOR FY 2024 

 4 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit B 

# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 
resource 
estimate 

Estimated 
expenses 

2.
d. 

Water Planning  
i. Participate in and comment on all updates to 

the Hawai`i Water Plan and County Plans that 
will affect DHHL and beneficiary water kuleana 

ii. Coordinate DHHL agricultural water systems 
development planning with State and county 
community plans. 

iii. Coordinate with DHHL staff working on 
subsistence agricultural plans. 

Staff time:   
35 hr. 
Consultant 
time:  60 hr. 

See item 1.a. 

2.
e. 

Comment on water rights-related legislative and 
other agency rulemaking actions as necessary and 
directed. 

Staff time:   
20 hr. 
Consultant 
time:  40 hr. 

See item 1.a. 

2.
f. 

Work with authorized outside counsel as applicable 
to assert DHHL water rights through legal 
mechanisms; Use of expert witnesses if attempts to 
mediate ongoing disputes are unsuccessful in 
administrative proceedings 

Staff time:   
30 hr. 
Consultant 
time:  225 hr.  

Within PO 
budget and 
consultant 
contracts 

2.
g. 

Participate in the establishment of the East Maui 
Water Authority Board 

Staff time: TBD 
Consultant 
time:  TBD. 

Within PO 
budget and 
consultant 
contracts 

 Subtotal Staff: 485 hr. 
 
Consultants: 
1,025 hr. 

 

 
  



PROPOSED WPP IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM AND BUDGET FOR FY 2024 

 5 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit B 

Goal 3.  Develop and manage a Water Assets Inventory (WAI). 
 
# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 

resource 
estimate 

Estimated 
expenses 

3. 
a. 

(Former 3.b.) Integrate Cultural Water Assets 
Inventory into DHHL decision-making 
 

Goal 3.c. Staff 
time:  
40 hr. 
Goal 3.c. 
Consultant 
time: 40 hr. 

Within PO 
budget and 
consultant 
contracts 

 Subtotal Staff: 40 
Consultant: 40 

Obligated funds 

 
  



PROPOSED WPP IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM AND BUDGET FOR FY 2024 

 6 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit B 

Goal 4.  Support watershed protection and restoration on DHHL lands and source areas for 
DHHL water. 
 
# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 

resource 
estimate 

Estimated 
expenses 

4. 
a. 

Implementation of any conditions placed on a 
granted WUPA for the Kauluwai 1&2 wells by CWRM 

TBD TBD, to be 
covered by 
existing 
resources or 
grant funds 

 

 

 
  



PROPOSED WPP IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM AND BUDGET FOR FY 2024 

 7 HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit B 

5. Other WPP Goals: Implementation of additional WPP goals based on the availability of 
resources 
 
# Implementation Action(s) Cost  / 

resource 
estimate 

Estimated 
Expenses 

5. 
a. 

Staff and organize the DHHL consistent with 
importance of water to the trust. 
i. Train and update them on issues addressed DHHL 

water team and positions taken on those issues. 

5.a. Staff 
time: 20 hr. 
5.a. Consultant 
time: 40 hr. 

Within PO 
budget  

5. 
b. 

Water Source Development:  Planning, environmental 
compliance and related matters for water source 
development in homestead communities statewide 

5.b. Staff 
time: 160 hr. 
5.b. Consultant 
time: 160 hr. 
(not including 
third parties) 

Continued use 
of obligated 
funds 

 Subtotal Staff: 500 
Consultant: 
590+ 

 

 



HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION WATER POLICY PLAN 

July 22, 2014

Vision
Our vision is that there will be adequate amounts of water and supporting infrastructure 
so that homestead lands will always be usable and accessible, to enable us to return to 
our lands to fully support our self-sufficiency and self-determination in the 
administration of the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act (HHCA), and the preservation of 
our values, traditions, and culture. 

Mission
In a manner consistent with our values, the Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) and 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL) shall strive to ensure the availability of 
adequate, quality water by working cooperatively to:

• Understand our trust water assets;

• Plan for our water needs;

• Aggressively understand, exercise and assert our kuleana as stewards of water;

• Develop and protect water sources; and

• Manage water systems.

Values
1. Waiwai: Mōhala i ka wai ka maka o ka pua. Unfolded by the water are the faces

of the flowers. The availability of water to our lands and people is integral to the
trust and our mission.

2. Waihona: Ua lehulehu a manomano ka `ikena a ka Hawai`i. Great and numerous
is the knowledge of the Hawaiians. Honoring and documenting our knowledge
about water is essential to managing it.

3. Mālama: He ali`i ka `āina; he kauwā ke kanaka. The land is a chief; man is its
servant. We consider water to be part of our genealogy and so we manage it in a
manner that cares for its long-term sustainability for all things, as we also use it
productively for our mission.

4. Laulima: E lauhoe mai nā wa'a; i ke kā, i ka hoe; i ka hoe, i ke kā; pae aku i ka
'āina. Everybody paddle the canoes together; bail and paddle, paddle and bail,
and the shore is reached. We are one people who now share Hawai`i with others.
DHHL is only one of many Hawaiian serving institutions. We will assert our rights
while considering our larger lāhui `ōiwi and the larger world in which we live.

Page 1 of 6

Jonathan Likeke Scheuer
ITEM G-2 EXHIBIT C



Policies
The HHC and the DHHL are seeking to be proactive in our management of water. Our 
Priority Policies are to:

1. Expressly determine and plan for future water needs and actively participate in
broader water management, use and protection efforts in Hawai`i in order to
secure water.

2. Aggressively exercise, reclaim, and protect Hawaiian home land water kuleana.

3. Develop, manage, and steward water in a manner that balances cost, efficiency
measures, and Public Trust uses in the short and long term.

4. Affirmatively communicate our decisions, our reasoning, and our performance in
managing, stewarding, and using water before and after making major water
decisions.

Additionally, the HHC and the DHHL should consider in their work the following 
statements:

5. Educate beneficiaries, the DHHL, HHC, and other stakeholders continually on our
water kuleana.

6. Foster self-sufficiency of beneficiaries by promoting the adequate supply of
water for homesteading when developing or managing water.

7. Foster the self-determination of beneficiaries by seeking ways for beneficiaries
to participate in the management of water by delegating authority related to
water subject to the discretion of the HHC as described in the HHCA.

8. Make water decisions that incorporate traditional and place-based knowledge of
our people and are clear and methodical in their reasoning.

9. Make efforts to understand, maintain, and improve the quality of water as it
moves into and through our lands and is used by beneficiaries.

10. Affirmatively consider the development and use of alternative sources of water
and efficiency measures in water decision-making.

11. Ensure that water decisions are consistent with other Departmental policies,
programs, and plans including but not limited to the Energy Policy and
Agricultural Program.

12. Explicitly consider water availability and the costs to provide adequate water
when developing new homestead areas, designating land uses, issuing land
dispositions, or exchanging properties.

Page 2 of 6

Jonathan Likeke Scheuer
ITEM G-2 EXHIBIT C



Goals
To make progress on achieving our Mission and complying with our Policies, the Priority 
Goals of the HHC and the DHHL are to:

1. Affirmatively communicate with beneficiaries regarding water decisions, 
performance, and water rights on a regional and annual basis.

2. Aggressively, proactively, consistently and comprehensively advocate for the 
kuleana of the beneficiaries, the DHHL, and the HHC to water before all relevant 
agencies and entities.

3. Develop and manage a Water Assets Inventory (WAI).

4. Support watershed protection and restoration on DHHL lands and source areas 
for DHHL water.

Additional goals that DHHL and the HHC shall seek to achieve, based on the availability 
of resources, organized by Mission activities, are:

Part I. Understand our trust water assets

1. Revise the DHHL submittal template to the HHC for water related decisions.

2. Revise budgets to show the total costs of a) water system management b) all 
spending on water issues.

3. Staff and organize the DHHL consistent with importance of water to the trust.

Part II. Plan for our water needs

4. Determine current and foreseeable future needs based upon periodic reviews of 
water availability projections that incorporate climate change, projected 
beneficiary demand, alternative sources and efficiency measuresefficiency 
measures.

5. Design homesteads and manage lands to create and enhance water availability, 
optimizing costs, use of alternative sources and efficiency measures.

Part III. Aggressively understand, exercise and assert our water rights

6. Secure adequate and enforceable reservations of water for current and 
foreseeable future needs for all of its lands across the islands. 

7. Partner with trust beneficiaries in water advocacy efforts.

8. Engage in updates to all Hawai`i Water Plan elements to ensure DHHL water 
needs and rights are addressed.

9. Advocate that all Water Use Permit Applications properly address the water 
rights of DHHL and other Hawaiian water rights.

Page 3 of 6
 

http://files.hawaii.gov/dlnr/cwrm/forms/GWUPA-N.pdf
Jonathan Likeke Scheuer
ITEM G-2 EXHIBIT C



10. Advocate that County Boards of Water Supply and other County agencies that
affect water have the spirit of the HHCA faithfully carried out to protect DHHL
water uses as a Public Trust use of water and manage rates so they are
affordable by beneficiaries.

11. Ensure that all legal provisions for the licensing of state water are followed.

Part IV. Develop and protect water sources

12. Carefully weigh alternatives regarding the dedication or DHHL management of
new water systems.

13. Methodically and consistently manage and allocate water credits.

14. Support the drilling of wells by beneficiaries for their own use on lots where
appropriate.

15. Partner with Department of Health and others on water quality education and
outreach.

16. Continue to pursue development of agricultural water systems.

Part V. Manage water systems

17. Secure revenue and reduce operation costs so DHHL water systems break even
financially over the long term.

18. Increase security and reliability for DHHL water users.

19. Pursue resolution by the Department of Agriculture of prior audit findings in the
management of the Moloka`i Irrigation System and full repair of the System

Page 4 of 6

Jonathan Likeke Scheuer
ITEM G-2 EXHIBIT C



Delegation of Authorities, Reporting, and Consultation
1. Delegation

a. The HHC delegates authority to the Chairperson to prepare an
Implementation Program for this Water Policy Plan, which shall be
subject to the approval by HHC. The Program shall identify tasks to
implement each goal, and shall specify tasks that apply statewide as well
as tasks that apply to different islands or regions under each goal.

2. Reporting

a. The Chairperson shall submit the proposed Implementation Program to
the HHC annually in conjunction with the Department’s budget request.

b. The Chairperson shall annually report on progress on execution of the
approved Implementation Program and overall progress towards
achieving the goals of and maintaining compliance with the Water Policy
Plan.

3. Consultation

a. The Chairperson shall consult with the HHC on any major water issues not
contained in the Implementation Program.

Legal Authorities
1. Hawai`i State Constitution

2. Hawaiian Homes Commission Act of 1921, as amended

3. Hawai`i State Water Code, HRS 174C

4. In the Matter of Water Use Permit Applications (Waiāhole I case)

5. Wai`ola o Moloka`i

6. Kauai Springs, Inc. v. Planning Commission of the County of Kauai

Related Plans and Policies
1. DHHL General Plan

2. DHHL Energy Policy

3. Hawaiian Homes Commission Beneficiary Consultation Policy

References
1. 1983. Puku`i, Mary Kawena. 'Ōlelo No'eau: Hawaiian Proverbs & Poetical

Sayings. Honolulu: Bernice Pauahi Bishop Museum.

2. Aia i hea ka wai a Kāne? (Traditional chant, “Where is the water of Kāne?”)

Page 5 of 6

http://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2011/05/Final%20Report%20on%20Beneficiary%20Consultation%20Policy.pdf
http://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2011/09/DHHL-Energy-Policy.pdf
http://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2012/05/Island_Plan_General_2002.pdf
http://www.courts.state.hi.us/docs/opin_ord/sct/2014/February/SCWC-29440con.pdf
http://www.state.hi.us/jud/21309op.htm
http://www.capitol.hawaii.gov/hrscurrent/Vol03_Ch0121-0200D/HRS0174C/HRS_0174C-.htm
http://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2011/06/HHCA_1921.pdf
http://lrbhawaii.org/con/
http://www.state.hi.us/jud/22250.htm
Jonathan Likeke Scheuer
ITEM G-2 EXHIBIT C



Definitions
Alternative sources: Alternative sources include but are not limited to the water 
developed through reuse and recycling technologies and best practices, capture 
of flood waters, desalinated waters, and other sources as may be appropriate for 
proposed uses.

Hawai`i Water Plan: The Hawai`i Water Plan and its parts, as detailed in Part III 
of the Hawai`i State Water Code (HRS 174C), is the state’s “program of 
comprehensive water resources planning to address the problems of supply and 
conservation of water” (HRS 174C-2(b)).

Efficiency Measures: Efficiency measures include optimal design and 
development, alternative energy utilization, changing in behavioral practices and 
technologies that support onsite distributed wastewater systems.

Kuleana: Kuleana encompasses both rights and responsibilities. DHHL’s water 
kuleana includes its responsibilities under its mission and the legal rights to 
water enshrined in the HHCA and state Constitutional and statutory provisions. 
Kuleana exists within the genealogical and spiritual relationship between water 
and the lāhui `ōiwi.

Public Trust: As delineated in the Hawai`i Supreme Court Waiāhole I and Wai`ola 
O Moloka`i cases, public trust uses of water include domestic uses, traditional 
and customary Hawaiian rights, the protection and procreation of fish and 
wildlife, the maintenance of proper ecological balance and scenic beauty, and 
reservations of water for the DHHL.

Water: In this policy, water includes mists, fog, rain, and other precipitation; 
water as it flows above or below ground, and into the ocean; water used for 
homesteading; alternative sources including waste, brackish, and salt water; 
water used in the exercise of traditional and customary practices; infrastructure 
used to produce, store and transmit water; and water we use as well as water to 
which we have rights.

Water Assets Inventory (WAI): A comprehensive geographically referenced 
database of the water assets of the DHHL, including traditional knowledge 
related to water, DHHL owned water infrastructure, current and future water 
demand, water agreements, water credits, and potential water sources.

Approval Date
Policy approved by the Hawaiian Homes Commission on July 22, 2014. 

Page 6 of 6

Jonathan Likeke Scheuer
ITEM G-2 EXHIBIT C



- 1 – ITEM NO. G-3 

STATE OF HAWAI‘I 
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

July 17, 2023 

To: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

Thru: Andrew H. Choy, Planning Program Manager 

From: Pearlyn L. Fukuba, Planner plf 

Subject: For Information Only – Status Update on Plan 
Implementation in the Kona Moku, Island of Oʻahu 

Recommended Action 

 For information only. No action required. 

Background 

By request of the Chairman, the Planning Office provides the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) with a status report on prior 
policies and/or plans that affect lands and homestead 
communities where the HHC conducts its monthly community 
meeting.  For July 2023, the Planning Office is providing an 
update on implementation of various plans and programs for the 
Kona Moku planning region, O’ahu. 

Discussion 

EXISTING PLANS & IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 

O‘ahu Island Plan Policies Related to the Kona Moku 

The purpose of each DHHL Island Plan is to: 

(1) Provide a comprehensive resource for planning and land
management purposes;

(2) Establish land use designations (LUD) for all land
holdings to promote orderly land use development and
efficient development of infrastructure systems; and

(3) Identify island-wide needs, opportunities, and
priorities.

The O‘ahu Island Plan (OIP)was adopted by the HHC in 2014.  
The Island Plan delineated four planning districts, or moku, for 
the island of O‘ahu:  Wai‘anae, ‘Ewa, Kona, and Ko‘olaupoko.  



   
 

                  - 2 –                    ITEM NO. G-3 

DHHL land holdings in the Kona Moku are in Moanalua, Kapālama, 
Papakōlea, Kewalo, Kalāwahine Streamside, and Mō‘ili‘ili: 

 
Map 1:  DHHL Land Holdings in the Kona Moku: 

 
 
The OIP identifies varied LUD for these parcels, which are 

summarized in the below table: 
 

Table 1:  Kona Moku LUD Summary of Land Acres: 

Land Use 
Designation (LUD) Moanalua Kapālama 

Papakōlea, 
Kewalo & 
Kalāwahine Mō‘ili‘ili 

Percent of 
LUD 

on O‘ahu 
Special District -- -- 15 -- 6% 
Conservation -- -- 70 -- 3% 
General Ag -- --  --  
Residential -- -- 90 -- 5% 
Pastoral -- -- -- --  
Subsistence Ag -- -- -- --  
Supplemental Ag -- -- -- --  
Industrial 15 2   3% 
Community Use -- -- 2 -- 1% 
Commercial -- 3  2 5% 

TOTALS 15 acres 5 acres 177 acres 2 acres 
23% 

199 acres  



   
 

                  - 3 –                    ITEM NO. G-3 

O‘ahu Island Plan Implementation Status 
 

Since the OIP was adopted in July 2014, no land use 
amendments or updates to the Papakōlea region have been proposed 
or are being considered.  The plan acknowledges that from the 
standpoint of proximity to employment, this is an ideal location 
for homestead residents employed within the Primary Urban Core 
of Honolulu.  However, the following are constraints to 
additional residential homestead development of these lands, 
including infill strategies such as secondary dwelling units: 
 

• steep slopes -- potential for rock falls and instability 
• aging water and sewer lines 
• drainage and flooding issues 
• lack of off-street parking 

 
DHHL also has 15 acres within the Moanalua ahupua‘a and five 

(5) acres within the Kapālama ahupua‘a which are used strictly 
for revenue generation at this time.  Both areas were examined 
for potential transit-oriented redevelopment opportunities. 
 

The Moanalua and Kapālama properties had existing low rise 
light industrial and commercial uses when they were added to the 
inventory and are designated as such in the OIP. Both areas now 
fall within Honolulu City and County Transit-Oriented 
Development (TOD) planning areas for transit stations along the 
HART rail transit line and DHHL worked with consultants to 
examine opportunitiess and identify conceptual plans for the 
Moanalua Kai (Shafter Flats) and Kapālama properties.   
Geotechnical studies determined the capacity of the lands to 
accommodate proposed redevelopment, which then had to be revised 
to reflect potential impacts from sea level rise.  
 

The final report recommentions include: 
 

• lower density redevelopment 
• an “as is” scenario for parts of the area 
• thorough consideration of early termination or 

restructuring of the existing uncovered leases 
• consideration of the environmental and site condition data 

that were uncovered 
 
The 2-acre Mō‘ili‘ili site, the former Bowl-O-Drome building 

and parking lot, is being redeveloped as the Departmentʻs first 
high-rise affordable rental project and will provide 
beneficiaries an opportunity to live within Honoluluʻs urban 
core.  Upon completion, the 210-foot, 23-story high rise is 



   
 

                  - 4 –                    ITEM NO. G-3 

expected to have 270 living units, management offices, laundry 
and mailroom, community facilities, retail space and a parking 
structure. 

  
Papakōlea Regional Plan and Priority Projects 
 

The Papakōlea Regional Plan was prepared in 2009 as part of 
DHHL’s Regional Plan update process for the lands within the 
Honolulu Ahupua‘a.  In June 2019, DHHL initiated the process to 
update the regional plan and the updated plan was adopted by the 
HHC in July 2020. 
  

The planning process engaged the Papakōlea, Kewalo, and 
Kalāwahine Streamside lessees and their ‘ohana in identification 
of vision, values, issues and needs, development of a list of 
priority projects, and preparation of a draft and final Regional 
Plan Update.  The beneficiaries identified the following 
Priority Projects: 

 
• Native Hawaiian Education and Culture Community 

Center/Hawaiian Homestead Kūpuna Supportive Living 
Center (combines two Priority Projects) 

• Build a New Community Center 
• Care Home for Kūpuna 
• Traffic Safety Program 

 
Papakōlea Regional Plan Implementation Status 
 

Table 2, below, describes each Priority Project and the 
current status: 

 
Table 2 Papakōlea Regional Plan Implementation Status 

Priority Project Description Current Status 
1/2. 
Native Hawaiian 
Education and 
Culture Community 
Center/ Hawaiian 
Homestead Kūpuna 
Supportive Living 
Center (combines 
two Priority Projects) 
 
 

This project will provide a place for 
social, educational and cultural 
enrichment for ʻohana, serving 
beneficiaries fron infant to kūpuna.  
Partnerships with other Native Hawaiian 
organizations and community programs 
will help to provide quality services, 
including Hawaiian language classes, 
classrooms and offices for Native 
Hawaiian practitioners and businesses, 
playground and open space, full kitchen, 
garden and aquaculture area, farm space 

In 2021, the Papakōlea 
Community Development 
Corporation (PCDC) 
contracted G70 to facilitate 
the design and planning to 
build the Learning Center.  
During 2021 and 2022, 
community meetings and 
charettes were held to review 
past work, form a vision for 
the property and collect 
feedback on draft renderings.   
 



   
 

                  - 5 –                    ITEM NO. G-3 

Priority Project Description Current Status 
for native plants/medicinal plants/fruit 
trees, cultural walking path and parking. 

PCDC  continues to work with 
Keala Pono – Archaeological 
Consultant for environmental 
work.  Fundraising continues 
to complete additional plans, 
including the Environmental 
Assessment. 
 
In 2021, PCDC also contracted 
Group 70 to facilitate the 
design and visioning for a 
kupuna supportive living 
center.  Work on this project 
has halted because of new 
needs and potential partners 
have emerged.  PCDC plans to 
return to community to gather 
updated input on the needs of 
kūpuna in the homesteads. 
 
In August 2023, PCDC and 
Group 70 will launch the 
formal Environmental 
Assessment for the parcel.  
The process will be based on 
planning charettes, completed 
in 2022, where the 
community reviewed and 
provided feedback on draft 
renderings. This will move the 
PCDC one step closer to its 
goal to attain site control to 
build the Native Hawaiian 
Education and Culture Center. 

3.  Build a New 
Community Center 

The community has outgrown the 
current facilitiies located at 2150 
Tantalus Drive.  Major renovations are 
needed to address the lack of parking, 
lack of use for outdoor courts/play 
areas, lack of access for kūpuna and 
disabled persons, the need for air 
conditioning and old or outdated 
structures that need replacement.  
Instead of continued repair and 

While working to build a new 
community center and 
basketball complex, PCDC 
secured funds to replace the 
playground, install turf on the 
lawn area and make 
improvements to the 
basketball courts.  PCDC is 
fundraising for replacement of 
the Basketball Court Complex 



   
 

                  - 6 –                    ITEM NO. G-3 

Priority Project Description Current Status 
renovation, the community would like to 
invest in the demolition of the existing 
structures and the construction of a new 
facility that is better able to meet the 
current and future needs of this 
homestead. 

($10 million).  $250,000 was 
raised to replace the 
playground and resurface the 
courts.  The playground 
replacement and court re-
surfacing was completed in 
November 2022. 

4.  Care Home for 
Kūpuna 

The community envisions a care home 
for kūpuna to provide care services to 
families that need assistance.  The 
project would provide services such as 
adult day-care, respite care services and 
specialized care for adults with 
dementia.  Families who are balancing 
the needs of their day-to-day lices and 
the added are needs of their kūpuna 
would have a safety and qualified place 
within their community. 

Not implemented.  A 
champion for this project will 
need to be identified. 
 

5.  Traffic Safety 
Program 

The Papakōlea region is located along 
the steep hillsides of Pūowaina and the 
base of the Koʻolau mountains.  The 
streets are winding roadways that switch 
back-and-forth throughout the 
homesteads.  The majority of the two-
land roads do not have sidewalks and 
have limited crosswalks.  The lack of off-
street parking results in crowded 
roadways with parked vehicles, including 
abandoned vehicles. 

In FY 2022, DHHL 
implemented traffic calming 
measures with the 
construction of two (2) speed 
humps on Kapahu Street in 
the Kalawahine Homestead.  
Construction of a  third speed 
hump is also anticipated for 
Kapahu Street. 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
None; for information only. 



HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 

JULY 17 & 18, 2023 

J - ITEMS 

REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE 

COMMISSION 



Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting
July 17 & 18, 2023

Requests to Address the Commission

J-1 Gil Campbell – Lease Issue
J-2 Lydia Kamoku – Successorship Issues
J-3 Leilehualani Kane – Waiahole Waikane Hawaiian  

Homestead Association
J-4 Blossom Feiteira – Various Concerns
J-5 Kaleo Cullen – Kahikinui
J-6 Chantal Keliihoomalu - Kapolei Community   

Development Corporation (KCDC)
J-7 Adrienne Kia – Waiohuli Lessee





From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: HCC Contact:
Date: Thursday, June 15, 2023 12:44:53 PM

First Name

Gil

Last Name

Campbell

Email

gkcampbell49@gmail.com

Subject

To Commission Secretary

Message

I am requesting to be on the J agenda for 7/18/2023.

J-1

mailto:dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:gkcampbell49@gmail.com




J-1

J-2





















From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Monday, July 03, 2023 12:37:31 PM

Name

Leilehualani and Elijah Kane

Email

waiaholewaikaneHHA@gmail.com

Message

I am requesting to be on the j agenda on July 18 2023

I am from Waiahole Waikane and we have a Association 

Name is Waiahole Waikane Hawaiian Homestead Assocation

We are in need of your organization to be aware of our needs. 

please allow us to introduce our selves and the need of your department immediate action.

J-3

mailto:dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:waiaholewaikaneHHA@gmail.com




From: Blossom Feiteira
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: [EXTERNAL] J Agenda
Date: Tuesday, July 04, 2023 8:58:11 AM

Aloha Lea,

Would like to provide testimony on J agenda for July 18, 2023 on various concerns.

Mahalo,

Blossom

Sent from my iPhone

J-4

mailto:blossom96708@yahoo.com
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov




From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Tuesday, July 04, 2023 11:20:49 PM

Name

Francis Cullen

Email

Kaleoc67@gmail.com

Message

Submit testimony on lease cancellation for noncompliance of leases in Kahikinui, Maui.
Lessee allowing the boyfriend of Faith Chase squat on the lot.

J-5

mailto:dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:Kaleoc67@gmail.com




From: Chantal Keliihoomalu
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: [EXTERNAL] July 17/18, 2023 J-agenda
Date: Monday, July 03, 2023 9:02:21 PM

Aloha e Lea,

My name is Chantal Keliihoomalu and I am the new Executive Director for Kapolei Community Development
Corporation (KCDC).

I am trying to register to be on the July 17/18, 2023 commissioner meeting J-agenda—- but I was not able to find
where to register online. The other months look like they have links to register but there are not links for July.

We would like to provide some updates on KCDC.

Your help is much appreciated

Mahalo in advance

Chantal Keliihoomalu, MSW, LSW
Executive Director
Kapolei Community Development Corporation
 (KCDC) 808-358-4215

J-6

mailto:chantalk@hawaii.edu
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov




From: Adrienne Kia
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL]
Date: Friday, June 16, 2023 7:40:59 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image002.png

Please add me to the July schedule
Mahalo 
Napuaala (Adrienne) Kia

Aloha mai, e Leah,

May I RSVP to advocate on the J Agenda at the Hawaiian Homes commission meeting via
Zoom at/after 11 Tuesday morning 6/27/23?

I am  a Waiohuli Hawaiian Homestead lessee.

Mahalo,

Napuaala (Adrienne) Kia

J-7

mailto:adriennekia6@gmail.com
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov









	Agenda
	Exhibits
	C Items
	C-1
	C-2
	C-3
	C-4

	D Items
	D-1
	D-2
	D-3
	D-4
	D-5
	D-6
	D-7
	D-8
	D-9
	D-10
	D-11
	D-12

	E Items
	E-1
	E-2
	E-3

	F Items
	F-1
	F-2
	F-3
	F-4
	F-5
	F-6

	G Items
	G-1
	G-2
	Ex A
	Ex B
	Ex C

	G-3

	J Items
	J Agenda_Packet .pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page





